University of New Orleans

ScholarWorks@UNO

University of New Orleans Theses and Dissertations

Dissertations and Theses

5-15-2009

Risk Assessment and Risk Management of Nano-Material Toxicity

Farah Bigdeli University of New Orleans

Follow this and additional works at: https://scholarworks.uno.edu/td

Recommended Citation

Bigdeli, Farah, "Risk Assessment and Risk Management of Nano-Material Toxicity" (2009). *University of New Orleans Theses and Dissertations*. 921. https://scholarworks.uno.edu/td/921

This Thesis is protected by copyright and/or related rights. It has been brought to you by ScholarWorks@UNO with permission from the rights-holder(s). You are free to use this Thesis in any way that is permitted by the copyright and related rights legislation that applies to your use. For other uses you need to obtain permission from the rights-holder(s) directly, unless additional rights are indicated by a Creative Commons license in the record and/or on the work itself.

This Thesis has been accepted for inclusion in University of New Orleans Theses and Dissertations by an authorized administrator of ScholarWorks@UNO. For more information, please contact scholarworks@uno.edu.

Risk Assessment and Risk Management of Nano-Material Toxicity

A Thesis

Submitted to the Graduate Faculty of the University of New Orleans In partial fulfillment of the Requirement for the degree of

Master of Science

Environmental Engineering

By

Farah Bigdeli

University of New Orleans

May 2009

Table of contents

List of Figures	iv
List of Tables	v
Abstract	vi
Chapter 1	1
1-1. Introduction	1
1-2. Scope of work	3
1-3. Significance	3
Chapter 2: General preface to nano scale materials	6
2-1. Concept of nano-materials and nano-particles	6
2-2. Classification of nano-particles sources	8
2-2-1. Natural and manufactured nano-materials and their health effects	8
2-2-2. Anthropogenic nano-materials and health effects	9
2-2-3. Manufactured nano-materials and health effects	10
2-2-4. Introduction to nano-material toxicity	10
2-3 Dependent toxicity parameters	11
2-3-1. Physico-chemical characteristics	12
2-3-2. Dose-response	12
2-3-3. Sizes	12
2-3-4. Surface area	13
2-3-5. Concentrations	13
2-3-6. particle chemistry and crystalline structure	14
2-3-7. Surface coating and functionalization	14
Chapter 3: Natural nano-materials	17
3-1. Appearance of natural nano-materials in environment	17
3-2. Toxicology of natural nano-materials	19
3-3. Risk assessment of natural nano-particles	20
Chapter 4: Principles of nano-material toxicity	22
4-1. Framework for nano-material toxicity assessment	22
4-1-1. Epidemiology Studies	22

4-1-2. Animal Testing for Toxicity	23
4-2. Concept of nano-engineering and nano-chemistry	23
4-3. Design of required nano-chemistry module	25
4-4. Design of nano-engineering module	27
4-5. Toxicity pathways in natural environment	31
4-6. Toxicity in human health system	32
4-7. Scientific tools in nano-particles toxicity assessment (invivo& invitro)	34
4-8. Toxicity evaluation model	36
Chapter 5 Methodology framework for Toxicology and Ecotoxicology of nano-materials	40
5-1 Information analyses	41
5-2 Toxicity evaluation for nano-scale materials-[Fullerenes, TiO2, ZNO]	43
5-3 Module of toxicity evaluation of ZNO	43
5-4 Module of toxicity evaluation of TiO2	46
5-5 Module of toxicity evaluation of Fullerenes	48
Chapter 6 Risk assessment and risk management	52
6-1 Methodology and strategy of risk assessment for toxic nano-materials	52
6-2 Risk Characterizations	54
6-3 Hazardous identification	55
6-4 Exposure assessment	56
6-5 Carcinogenic and Non-carcinogenic Risk Assessment	58
6-6 Risk assessment and test methods ((controlling methods)	60
6-7 Risk assessment and risk management model of nano- martial toxicity	61
6-7-1 Quantitative analysis versus Qualitative devices	68
6-8 Risk assessment and management development to standard regulations	69
Chapter 7	73
7-1 Discussion	73
7-2 Conclusion	75
References	79
Appendix A Relationship of ORD Research Strategy to ERA White Paper Research Needs (Cur	ront

Appendix A. Relationship of ORD Research Strategy to EPA White Paper Research Needs (Current Research (CR), Short-term Research (SR), and Long-term Research- (LT) 85

	Appendix B. Description of EPA Office of Research and Development	96
Vita		98

List of Figures:

Figure-1 Toxicity evaluation pathway	5
Figure-2 Nano-chemistry module	27
Figure-3 Nano-engineering module	30
Figure-4 Toxicity evaluation module	38
Figure-5 Module of toxicity evaluation of ZNO	44
Figure-6 Module of toxicity evaluation of TiO2	47
Figure-7 Module of toxicity evaluation of Fullerenes	49
Figure-8 Module of exposure life cycle	57
Figure-9Modual of exposure assessment	58
Figure-10 Relationship of key science questions to support risk assessment and risk	
management decisions	62
Figure-11: Risk assessment and management model	66
Figure-12 Quantitative Analysis and Qualitative Devices	69
Figure B-1 Organization chart for the office of research and development	97

List of Tables:

Table-1 Pub med search result health risk Assessment of manufactured nano-materials	4
Table-2 Application of NMs	15
Table-3Cytotoxicity studies of selected nano-materials	23
Table-4 Summary of the state of knowledge for nano-particles and controls	51

Abstract

Increasing applications of nano materials in medicine, construction, textiles, computers, and other consumer goods have lead to increasing concerns of their effect on human health and ecology during synthesis, manufacturing, use, and disposal of nano-materials. Though much scientific progress has been made in nano material synthesis, manufacturing, and application in consumer goods and other sectors such as medicine, textiles and more, not much progress has been made in understanding the adverse effects of nano materials on human health and the environment. Physical, chemical, toxicological characteristics of these nano materials and their fate in the environment are important in understanding their adverse effects on the environmental and human health. This study is aimed at developing a preliminary framework for risk assessment (RA) and risk management (RM) of nano materials based on fundamental principles of chemistry, physics, toxicology, and other related disciplines.

Keywords: toxicity, nano, green, RA, RM

Chapter 1

1-1 Introduction

The expanded growth of nano-material applications requires continuous monitoring of their toxicity and exposure in various predominant conditions. Scientific methodology (chemical, physical, and biological approaches) with respect to engineering practices (environmental engineering and nano-engineering) is one of the applicable practices to properly assign the mechanism of nano-material toxicity, along with evaluating and extrapolating to formulate risk assessment and a management model. The comprehensive description of a nano-material toxicity mechanism also needs to include some essential factors: properties, characteristics, structure, chemical composition, sources, as well as consideration of nano-chemistry, nano-engineering, and understanding the harmful effects on natural environment and human health. Finally, design of a proper combined model of risk assessment and management in order to make certain decisions from possible outcomes is necessary.

To identify a systematic model of nano-particles toxicity, information and experimental data need to be collected that could lead to the building of a hypnotized system. This object might function as a valuable guideline to design the required and relevant modules, mental modeling, and diagrams. This study presents an appropriate outline to evaluate the toxicity of nano-materials, assess potential risk, and design an acceptable framework for risk management that would derive a practical method to challenge the harmful impacts of toxic nano-materials applications.

Consideration of the extraordinary and unusual properties of nano-materials, their relevant variables, uncertain events, contribution of new information, value of outcomes, characterization of nano-particle systems, and potential hazards of toxic nano-particles are essential parameters with which to design and build ideal modules and preferred modeling. The presented modules and models could be an exclusive back-up to organize and accumulate knowledge and experiences to reach successful procedures and applicable methods for risk assessment of nano-material toxicity. The preliminary and preferred factors in this research focus on a combination of nano-science characteristics and nano-engineering techniques. Three prominent and chosen nano-materials contain [Fullerenes (Bucky Balls & CNTs), ZNO, and TiO2] and their toxicity evaluations lead to the attainment of a general understanding and improved realization of some unique and unusual properties of nano-materials. Furthermore, these objects may assist to predict and recognize toxicity and exposure as two most significant factors in risk assessment. The design modules and drawing models in this research are based on a fundamental description of the mechanism for nominated toxic nano-particles and their harmful effects. The most important functions have focused on eco-toxic impacts on natural environment and human health, their processing, and primary variables in both relevant branches of nano-chemistry and nano-engineering. Toxicity modules may occur explicitly from in vitro and in vivo studies, toxicokentic, acute toxicity and toxicity dosage, carcinogenicity, and instillation versus inhalation. In addition, the focus is on three items: bioavailibity, bioconcetration, and bioaccumulation, which are required to accurately estimate toxicity. Sketches of nano-chemistry and nano-engineering modules can be the proper experimental tools to enhance the controlling method. The benefits of

designed models of risk assessment and management in this study might help to complete the framework of research in scientific–engineering areas in two ways: first, by deriving certain outline of toxicity and exposure estimation, second, advantage leads toward an accurate guideline of potential risk assessment of nano-material toxicity to reach a regulation pathway.

1-2 Scope of work

The overall scope of the work is to understand the nano-material toxicity and propose risk assessment (RA) and risk management (RM) methodology which will minimize adverse impacts on human health and deterioration of the environment. The specific objectives of this research are listed below:

• Conduct a critical review of nano-material toxicity on human health and the environment

• Develop an integrated RA and RM methodology for nano-materials using the fundamental principles of chemistry, physics, biology, toxicology, and other related disciplines

• Propose nano-engineering and nano-chemistry for control measures to minimize the impact of various nano-material toxicity on human health and environment

1-3 Significance

The most important objective of this study is to provide critical reviews of the effect of nano-material toxicity on human health and the environment. In addition, approaches in chemistry, physics, and biology are needed to develop the RA methodology pathway in this area. A review of relevant studies and reports concerning

toxicity evaluation may lead to worldwide data and information that are fundamental to the risk assessment of nano-material toxicity. [Fig-1]

Today, many studies and research have focused on nano-material toxicity assessment, providing new and required data. Table 1 introduces some of the most important studies for selected nano-scale materials in which some toxicity singes have been observed in different fields based on proper experimental testing methods. (Table-1)

Table 1: PubMed Search Results on Health Risk Assessment of	
Manufactured Nano-materials	
Nano-Materials	Number of Citations on Toxicity
Carbon Nanotubes	9
Dendrimer	29
Ceramic Nanoparticles	0
Nano (ultrafine)-ZnO	11
Nano-Cerium Dioxide	0
Nano-Zero Valent Iron	0
Nano (ultrafine)-TiO2	16
Fullerenes	37

National Health and Environmental Effects Laboratory U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Oct. 20-21, 2005

The most significant purpose in this study is emphasis on an evaluation of human health risks. However, because of a lack of sufficient data from human health analysis, using animal data is preferred. In vivo and in vitro studies may support and be used essentially to provide evidence missing from human studies and to help attain required data from the natural environment due to toxic impacts of NM and NP actions. Designing the appropriate models and modules may assist in making risk assessment principles and subsequent risk management decisions. These options could be extrapolated in various sites and fields with respect to predominant conditions. Also, they may be used to make proper regulation and/or standard settings.



Figure 1: Toxicity Evaluation Pathway

The principles in this study that support and develop the methodology of risk assessment and risk management associated with toxic nano-scale substances impacts either in the natural environment or in human health system include:

- Identification of physical and chemical properties, and analytical methods,
- Nano-engineering and nano-chemistry studies,
- Application of science and engineering approaches in methodology,
- Sources of exposure,
- Environmental transport, distribution, and transformation,

- Environmental levels and human exposure,
- Kinetics and metabolism in laboratory animals and humans,
- In vivo and in vitro studies and test systems,

• Estimation of adverse effects on the human health system and the natural environment,

- Effects on other organisms in the laboratory and field.
- Evaluation of human health risks and effects on the environment.
- Proper procedures to protect human health and the environment.
- Further plans to develop a research pathway.

The principles and methods in this study, as the essential objects, might have some beneficial effects with which to classify human analysis data and quantitative requirements for toxicity evaluation of NM and NP. The necessity to develop an accurate methodology for assessing the toxicity of nano-materials is to estimate the acceptable intake in different fields, the illustration of potential risk of toxicity, the application of uncertainty factors, and the determination of hazard and adverse disease endpoints, etc.

Chapter 2 General preface to nano scale materials

2-1 Concept of Nano-Materials and Nano-Particles

The concept of nano-material refers to structural components of substances in sizing range of 1 - 100 nano-meters in one dimension and/or more than one dimension. Also, the atomic and molecular building blocks with a size equal to [~0.2 nm] of matter may be considered in the nano-materials family. The other significant description in this

area relates to the concept of nano-particles which have at least one dimension and smaller than 1 micron. They are commonly as small as atomic and molecular length scales, about [0.2 nm].

The most important forms of nano-particles are amorphous or crystalline. Two familiar examples of materials in crystalline form are fullerenes and carbon nano-tubes, in addition to nano-particulate matter. This refers to a collection of Nan particles, emphasizing their collective behavior [23]. Therefore, based on these descriptions, nanotechnology could be recognized as a new science that considers design, synthesis, and application of materials. Furthermore, there are some particular approaches to obtain the desired size and shape in nano-scale that might be processed via nano-engineering procedures. Undoubtedly, these materials have unique chemical, physical, electrical, and mechanical properties with a wide range of applications in various fields, such as the industrial and medical activities, etc. In spite of benefits and wide range of applications (Table 2) of nano-materials, the focus on nano-toxicology issues is necessary. In nano-

Table 2. Application of NMs		
Application Area	Type of Application	
Industry	Cosmetics, Coatings, Materials Synthesis, Imaging,	
	Transportation and Telecommunication	
Science	Medical and Pharmaceutics, Space Research, Biomedical,	
	Pollution Remediation	
Engineering	Environmental, Mechanical, and Electrical Engineering,	
	Biomedical Engineering	

toxicology and nano-material toxicity evaluation as a novel portion of toxicology science, the harmful impacts produced by nano-materials may be subjected. Nano-toxicology science would be extended not only for investigation of the adverse effects of manufactured nano-materials, but it also encompasses the toxic impacts of natural nanoparticles such as atmospheric particles. This critical viewpoint attains a comprehensive assessment of nano-material toxicity and also leads to practical procedures in order to reduce and/or remove toxicity effects due to the application of NM and NP.

2-2 Classification of nano-particle sources

The three major groups of NM: natural NP, manufactured NM, and Anthropogenic NM.

In addition nano-particles are commonly classified according to their specific structural features, namely, dimensionality, morphology, composition, uniformity, and agglomeration.

2-2-1 Natural and manufactured nano-materials and their health effects:

The majority of nano-particles in nature could originate from many natural processes, which include: photochemical reactions, volcanic eruptions, forest fires, and simple erosion, in addition to being produced by plants and animals. Although we usually associate air pollution as being caused by human activities such as automobiles, industry, and charcoal burning, natural events such as dust storms, volcanic eruptions, and forest fires can produce such vast quantities of nano-particulate matter that they profoundly affect air quality worldwide [23]. One of the considerable examples of natural NM is an aerosol that is generated by human activities, which consists of about 10% of the total; the remaining 90% is due to natural processing. The most mass abundance of mineral aerosols primarily originates from soil deflation (wind erosion) with a minor component from volcanoes, sea salt, natural and anthropogenic sulfates, and products of biomass burning, excluding soot [23].

Terrestrial dust storms and extrarrestrial dust are other natural sources of NM in the environment. Long-range migration of both mineral dust and anthropogenic pollutants from the major continents has recently been the subject of intense investigation. Approximately 50% of troposphere atmospheric aerosol particles are minerals originating from deserts [61].

Terrestrial airborne dust particles produce some health problems, especially for people with asthma and emphysema.

Volcanic eruptions, as an important source, may eject an enormous mass of ash into the atmosphere. Ash as a NP with nano-scale size could reach to the different layers of the atmosphere, such as the troposphere and the stratosphere. This processing could impact the harmful radiation from the sun to all areas of the earth. Heavy metals (trace elements) are toxic NM for human health as they originate from volcanic eruptions as well. The most important effect of ejected ash on the health system occurs in the respiratory system (nose and throat irritations, bronchitic symptoms), and eye and skin irritations.

2-2-2 Anthropogenic nano-materials and health effects

In a second category to be considered, anthropogenic nano-materials also have critical impacts on the natural environment and human health.

Chemical manufacturing, welding, ore refining and smelting, combustion in vehicle and airplane engines, combustion of coal and fuel oil for power generation, nd diesel and engine exhaust are known as anthropogenic NM which have adverse health effects in various media. Diesel and automobile exhaust are the primary sources of

atmospheric nano- and micro-particles in urban areas [62]. The composition mixture of engine exhaust is the most serious reason for the magnitude of harmful health effects. Air pollution in some particular cases might be due to automobile exhaust and emission of toxic PM into the atmosphere, which influences mortality. However, this issue is associated with specific locations and fields.

2-2-3 Manufactured nano-materials and health effects

The manufactured nano-materials are synthesized by many applicable methods such as: gas phase processes, vapor deposition synthesis (electron, thermal, and laser beam evaporation); colloidal or liquid phase methods in which chemical reactions in solvents lead to the formation of colloids; and mechanical processes including grinding, milling, and alloying. Using these methods can obtain the desired NM with various applications.

In spite of this wide range of applications of engineered NM, the focus on potential health risk issues is required. This main consideration is due to the adverse health effects of fabricated NM that today is the critical issue in scientific and engineering investigations. The subject of research must be directed in finding solutions to decrease and/or remove these adverse impacts.

2 2-4 Introduction to nano-material toxicity

Today, toxicity and the adverse effects of nano-materials action are a critical issue. Many significant aspects of NP, such as their small size, can be translocated from entry portals into the circulatory and lymphatic systems, and ultimately to body tissues and organs. Furthermore, based on several investigations of the natural environment,

some insensible effects of toxic NM have been observed. These harmful impacts could destroy ecological balances in different media. Some nano-particles, depending on their composition and size, can produce irreversible damage to cells by oxidative stress and/or organelle injury.

In spite of a number of benefits and valuable applications of nano-materials, several reports have suggested negative and harmful effects of NM on living cells, the natural environment, and ecological balances. The most important parameters which are responsible for potential NP toxicity include: particle size, surface area, surface chemistry, surface charge, and zeta potential. These factors are essential to provide the uptake mechanism, persistence, and biological toxicity of nano-particles inside living cells. Additionally, consideration of these significant factors could predict the sustainability/mobility and reaction of materials inside the human body in terms of toxic evaluation. Therefore, a focus on dependent toxicity parameters would recognize the mechanistic details of their actions and might be an appropriate pathway to obtain a complete analysis of toxicity assessment.

2-3 Dependent toxicity parameters

There are many factors that influence toxicity of nano-scale materials and possibly its distribution in the natural environment and human health system as well. These important aspects directly or indirectly have a critical role in toxicity generation for nano-particles because of the specific properties that would be involved in various mechanisms and processing. Also, different impacts may predict outcomes in many fields. Some of these parameters are described in the following sections.

2-3-1 Physico-chemical characteristics

The toxicity of NM involves a number of parameters and predominant conditions. Studies show the most essential parameters that influence the health system consist of dose, dimension, and durability. Furthermore, today there is a belief that these parameters have direct and possibly indirect associations with the different physicochemical properties of NP, including related health effects. On the other hand, there are some uncertainties about the range of alteration of NM properties relating to toxicity. Some of these optional parameters include: mass, number, size, bulk or surface chemistry, aggregation, or all together.

2-3-2 Dose-response

Dose is recognized as the amount or quantity of a substance that will reach a biological system. The dose is directly associated to exposure or the concentration of a substance in the relevant media (air, food, water) multiplied by the duration of contact.

Generally, the negative health effects of nano-particles do not correlate with nanoparticle mass dose [23].

2-3-3 Sizes

Current investigation in toxicological studies have revealed small nano-particles (<100 nm) may cause harmful impacts on the respiratory health system, and normally causing more inflammation than larger particles made from the same material. In addition, some experiments on the crystalline structure of some nano-scale particles have demonstrated that smaller particles lead to a persistently high inflammatory reaction in the lungs compared to larger particles. Furthermore, investigation of an exposure period

(up to 1 year) has shown that the smaller particles had a significantly prolonged retention, and increased translocation to the pulmonary interstitium and pulmonary persistence of nano-particles [23].

2-3-4 Surface area

For the same mass of particles with the same chemical composition and crystalline structure, a greater toxicity was found from NP than from their larger counterparts. This led to the conclusion that the inflammatory effect may be dependent on the surface area of NM, suggesting a need for changes in definitions and regulations related to dose and exposure limits. Indeed, smaller NP has a higher surface area and particle number per unit mass compared to larger particles [23]. The body will react differently to the same mass dose consisting of billions of NP compared to several microparticles. A larger surface area leads to increased reactivity [63] and is an increased source of reactive oxygen species, as demonstrated by in vitro experiments [65]. The higher surface area of nano-particles causes a dose dependent increase in oxidation [65] and DNA damage [64], much higher than larger particles with the same mass dose [65].

2-3-5 Concentrations

In toxicity evaluation, some studies show the different toxic effects of NP at the various concentrations. A comparison between the consequences of different studies on different concentrations of NM as a dependent parameter in toxicity is correlated to aggregation properties of nano-particles in air and water, resulting in inherent discrepancies between inhalation studies and instillation or in vitro experiments. Furthermore, aggregation may depend on surface charge, material type, and size, among others. One must stress the fact that aggregation of NM is essential in determining their

toxicity, due to a more effective macrophage clearance for larger particles compared to smaller ones. Therefore, experiments performed with high concentrations of nanoparticles will lead to the formation of nano-particle aggregates that may not be as toxic as lower concentrations of the same nano-particles [23].

2-3-6 Particle chemistry and crystalline structure

Although there have been suggestions that size may be more important than chemical composition in deciding nano-particles toxicity [64], one cannot generally extrapolate the results of studies showing a similar extent of inflammation for the chemistry of different nano-particles. Particle chemistry is critical in determining nanoparticles toxicity. Particle chemistry is especially relevant from the point of view of cell molecular chemistry and oxidative stress. Namely, depending on their chemistry, nanoparticles can show different cellular uptake, sub-cellular localization, and the ability to catalyze the production of reactive oxygen species [67]. One must make the distinction between composition and chemistry. Though particles may have the same composition, they may have a different chemical or crystalline structure. The toxicity of a material depends on its type of crystalline form [66].

2-3-7 Surface coating and functionalization:

Due to the possibility of chemical interactions, the combined effects of inhalation, ingestion, or dermal application of NM with other NP, chemicals, and gases are largely unknown. The estimated risk of two or more pollutants is not a simple additive process. Particle surface plays a critical role in toxicity as it makes contact with cells and biological material.

Nano-material Effects observed	
<i>Fullerene</i> Antibacterial; cytotoxic to human cell lines; take	n up
C60 water suspension by human keratinocytes; stabilizes proteins	
C60 encapsulated in poly Damages eukaryotic cell lines; antibacterial	
(vinylpyrrolidone), cyclodextrins, or poly	
(ethylene glycol)	
Hydroxylated fullerene Oxidative eukaryotic cell damage	
Carboxyfullerene (malonic acid Bactericidal for Gram-positive bacteria; cytotoxi	c to
derivatives) human cell lines	
Fullerene derivatives withAntibacterial; inhibits cancer cell proliferation;	
pyrrolidine groups cleave	
plasmid DNA	
Other alkane derivatives of C60 Antimutagenic; cytotoxic; induces DNA damage	in
plasmids; inhibits protein folding; antibacterial;	
accumulates in rat livers	
Metallofullerene Accumulates in rat livers	
Inorganic Pulmonary inflammation in rats	
Silicon dioxide (SiO2)	
Anatase (TiO2) Antibacterial pulmonary inflammation in rodent	
Zinc oxide (ZnO) Antibacterial (micrometer scale); pulmonary effe	cts
in animals and humans	

July 15, 2006 / Environmental Science & Technol

Surfactants can drastically change the physicochemical properties of nanoparticles, such as magnetic, electric, optical properties, and chemical reactivity [23], and are affecting their cyto-toxicity. To follow and develop investigations with regard to NMs toxicity, the most significant results and observed impacts related to cyto-toxicity of NMs (selected some nano scale substances) are summarized in Table 3. These data are provided via many experimental testing methods and related laboratory analyses under different conditions and various fields. The selection of materials for investigation in this table is based on their toxicity actions and behaviors which created adverse effects.

The observation of the harmful effects of NMs toxicity in this table, as the primary features, helps to design proper laboratory experiments and make appropriate programming to find outlines of study and research to develop risk assessment and risk management of nano-material toxicity.

Surface coatings can render noxious particles non-toxic while less harmful particles can be made highly toxic. The presence of oxygen, ozone [64], oxygen radicals [68], and transition metals [65] on nano-particle surfaces leads to the creation of reactive oxygen species and the induction of inflammation.

Chapter 3 Natural nano-materials

Development of nano-science and nano-technology has caused a distinction between "engineered, manufactured" materials and "natural" nano particles. Possibly the human body and natural medias may not distinguish between exposure to the two categories of materials. There is no doubt environmental scientists prefer to be concerned with decreasing the toxicity of manufactured NM as the first step in risk potential. For this reason, preparation for some experimental testing in a biological as well as an engineering laboratory is necessary. Recently, some industries have explored cheaper ways and economic pathways to mass-produce nano-materials. Therefore, it is not impossible for natural nano-materials to be used in commercial applications.

Consideration of this critical issue leads us to focus on nano-technology regulation, creation of uniform standards to use NP and NM either naturally or as engineered products. On the other hand, natural NP also has different environmental exposures which may produce adverse impacts on the health system, natural media, and ecological balances. Consequently, as a proper suggestion, reorganization of the mechanistic data of natural NP and their toxicity evaluation in parallel with engineered NM could result in an accurate realization of risk assessment in this area.

3-1 Appearance of natural nano-materials in environment

There are various natural NP from natural sources in the environment. However, a number of these materials and specifically their adverse toxicity impacts have been not recognized. Undoubtedly, a focus on some available data and information for many natural NP could assist in obtaining major results and possibly extrapolating in the appropriate place and field. The most imperative natural NP and their health effects are

terrestrial dust storms, which appear to be the largest single source of environmental nano-particles. Long-range migration of both mineral dust and anthropogenic pollutants from the major continents has recently been the subject of intense investigation. Approximately 50% of troposphere atmospheric aerosol particles are minerals originating from deserts [61]. The size of particles produced during a dust storm varies from 100 nm to several microns [70]. The short-term effects of ash on health include: respiratory effects (nose and throat irritation, bronchitic symptoms), and eye and skin irritations.

Volcanoes and health effects: When a volcano erupts, ash and gases containing particulate matter ranging from the nano-scale to microns are propelled high into the atmosphere, sometimes reaching heights over 18,000 meters. The quantity of particles released into the atmosphere is enormous; a single volcanic eruption can eject up to 30 million tons of ash [71]. Volcanic ash that reaches the upper troposphere and the stratosphere (the two lowest layers of the atmosphere) can spread worldwide and affect all areas of the Earth for years. A primary effect of upper atmospheric particulate debris is the blocking and scattering of radiation from the sun. One particularly harmful volcanic product is particles composed of heavy metals, as these are known to be toxic to humans [23].

A large amount of sea salt aerosols is emitted from seas and oceans due to water evaporation, which in some cases insensible health effects have been observed. These aerosols are formed by water evaporation and, when wave-produced, water drops might be ejected into the atmosphere. Their size ranges from 100 nm to several microns. NP could also form in bodies of water through precipitation as a result of temperature changes and evaporation. Some studies show, however, no specific toxicity and adverse

health effects have been associated to sea salt aerosols, but sea salt aerosols are able to transport pollutants and microorganisms that themselves may cause adverse health effects.

3-2 Toxicology of natural nano-materials

Commonly, humans are exposed to nano-scale particles which originate from natural sources such as dust storms, volcanic ash, and other natural processes, and in many cases the human bodily systems could be well adapted to protect and produce safety from these harmful impacts. Today, the development of technology specifically in nano-materials application has significantly changed, which may influence the character of particulate pollution, thereby increasing the proportion of nanometer-sized particles -"nano-particles" and expanding the variety of chemical compositions. Recent epidemiological studies have shown a strong correlation between particulate air pollution levels, respiratory and cardiovascular diseases, various cancers, and mortality. Adverse effects of nano-particles on human health depend on individual factors such as genetics and existing disease, as well as exposure, and nano-particle chemistry, size, shape, agglomeration state, and electromagnetic properties.

Significantly, many metals contain copper, magnesium, sodium, potassium, calcium, and iron that in small quantities are necessary for biological systems, but at higher doses, these metals have toxic effects. Exposure to high levels of environmental metals such as some trace elements (Cr, Co, Se, Sr, etc.) causes disease in humans. Also, they are known to be toxic upon inhalation, ingestion, or dermal exposure. Nano-particles manufactured from these metals will have health effects not necessarily easily predicted from previous studies of non-nano-particulate quantities of the same metals. As workers

could be easily exposed to these toxic materials, manufacturing of metal nano-particles should be considered a serious occupational hazard [23].

The inhalation of metallic or other dust is known to have negative health effects. The type of lung diseases caused by dust inhalation depends on the nature of the material, exposure duration, and dose. The inhalation of some metal fumes (e.g., zinc, copper) may lead to metal fume fever, an influenza-like reaction [72]. Several metal dusts (e.g., platinum, nickel, chromium, cobalt) can lead to asthma [23], while inhalation of other metallic dusts can cause pulmonary fibrosis, and ultimately lung cancer. The percentage of lung cancers attributable to occupational hazards is about 15%, with exposure to metals being a major cause [72]. Beryllium, cadmium, cobalt, lead, nickels, chromium, aluminum, coal, coal ash, silica, manganese, as heavy metal organic dust at the particular dose, may have toxic impacts on the natural environment and health system as well.

3-3 Risk assessment of natural nano-materials

Inhalation risk assessment of natural NP contains trace elements and /or heavy metals which are emitted from natural sources such as volcanic ash and coal-fired power plants, etc. Because of the toxic impacts of many of these nano-scale substances, the environmental risk assessment may reveal adverse health effects or ecological exterminations.

Commonly, the benefit of risk assessment and management for natural nanomaterials and manufactured NP and NM is to understand many potential socioeconomic, health, and environmental issues as outcomes of new properties and behavior of nanoscale substances either originating from natural sources or as engineered nano-materials.

The most significant themes in risk assessment of NM and NP specifically natural nanoscale materials that must be considered include:

• Reorganization of chemical and physical properties, and characteristics of natural nano-particles

• Consideration of fate, behavior, biochemistry, and bio-geochemistry approaches

• Study of toxicological, eco-toxicology, and biological effects

• Achievement of experimental testing, measurement, and bioassays for nano-

materials and nano-particles

• Evaluation of exposure, environmental risk assessment, life cycle analysis, modeling, modules design, and focus on human health system

• Estimation of positive impacts of nano-scale substances in the environment and possibly human body

• Comparison of the various results to offer proper regulation, legislation, policy, and public awareness of new technology

Chapter 4 Principles of Nano-material toxicity

4-1 Framework for nano-material toxicity assessment

A study on toxicity is mainly categorized in three ways: investigation and observation of people that have been exposed to toxic NM and NP; experimental testing via using animals; and studies on various cells, including human, plant, and animals.

Toxicity studies using human issues need mechanistic considerations. For this reason, providing essential data due to toxic NM actions is necessary, and it could be achieved via a systematic bioassay tests on selected animals.

Generally, toxicity in animals may occur with a similar incidence and severity in human bodies. But differences sometimes occur; thus clinical tests with humans are needed to confirm the results of non-clinical laboratory studies [47].

In toxicity evaluation of nano-materials, many specific toxicological aspects and their accurate concepts must be considered. The most significant features in this area are described below.

4-1-1 Epidemiology Studies

Studies were conducted using human populations to evaluate whether there is a causal relationship between exposure to a substance and adverse health effects. These studies differ from clinical investigations in that individuals have already been administered a drug during medical treatment or have been exposed to it in the workplace or environment. Epidemiological studies measure the risk of illness or death in an exposed population compared to that risk in an identical (e.g., same age, sex, race, social status, etc.), unexposed population [47].

4-1-2 Animal Testing for Toxicity

Animal tests for toxicity might be based on prior human clinical studies and investigations. The applicable methods and procedures for toxicity assessment could be used for a wide variety of toxic impacts, specifically for nano-material toxicity. To provide sufficient safety in testing fields, all procedures would be standardized. Standardized animal toxicity tests are highly effective in detecting toxicity that may occur in humans. Concern for animal welfare has resulted in tests that use human procedures and only the number of animals needed for statistical reliability.

Standardized tests have been developed for the critical effects due to toxic nanomaterial actions that include: acute toxicity, sub-chronic toxicity, chronic toxicity, carcinogenicity, reproductive toxicity, developmental toxicity, dermal toxicity, ocular toxicity, neurotoxicity, and genetic toxicity [47].

4-2 Concept of nano-engineering and nano-chemistry

Today, newly developed nano-technologies may affect the social, economic, and environmental dimensions of the world could frequently be unanticipated. Along with the growth of a nano-chemistry industry, there is also the need to consider impacts of nano-materials on the environment and human health. Recent advances in nano-materials using nano-chemistry objects and nano- engineering producers demonstrate the applicable techniques and procedures to create novel environmental technologies with less insensible effects. Therefore, consideration of nano-chemistry and nano-engineering aspects could lead to comprehensive evaluation of NM toxicity and risk assessment clarification.

The most important application of nano-chemistry and nano-engineering is to form new substances. Synthetic chemists act like molecular engineers — designing and fabricating molecular structures of desired physico-chemical and electronic properties. They develop steps to build a complex molecular structure in an atom-by-atom or molecular fragment-to-molecular fragment approach.

Essentially, a nano-chemistry study like bulk material investigation of the behavior of nano-scale materials is possible. Additionally, nano-chemistry features result in the recognition of the characteristics and unique properties of nano-particles and their composition structures as well. To follow this critical object, a number of novel techniques and advance methods assist to design and produce the desired nano-material , dimensions, geometry, and even modify their structure based on particular requirements such as the reduction of toxicity effects due to their behavior and actions.

The focus on nano-chemistry concepts and engineering methods could define the mechanism for the creation of functional materials, devices, and systems through the control of matter at a scale of 1-100 nanometers, as well as an explanation of novel properties and phenomena developed at those desired scales. In addition, they create new small-scale substances and innovative methodologies for making them into various morphologies or modes of molecular organization. The motivation is both fundamental and practical. Fundamental: to discover and understand new phenomena exhibited by matter at these newly accessible dimensions, and practical: to form them into a useful something, as novel electronic devices, efficient drug delivery systems, ultrasensitive sensors, ultra-lightweight structural materials, highly efficient alternative energy sources, environmentally being materials, or as new materials for an entirely new application .

Nano-engineering has been developed with many critical objectives, including: decrease the size of nano-scale systems while keeping their functions, integrating functions to compact size systems, innovating and improving systems by adding microand nano-scale functions to macro-scale engineering applications, increasing the efficiency of existing nano-scale products by improving applicable engineering techniques to influence dependent parameters that involve NM behavior and possibly limit their performance and action based on necessary options.

4-3 Design of required nano-chemistry module

Nano-chemistry is the significant science of tools, technologies, and methodologies for chemical synthesis, analysis, and biochemical diagnostics, performed in scale-size. Using synthetic chemistry methods is an applicable procedure to make nano-scale and design the structure with the desired shape, size, composition, surface structure, and acceptable charge. The specific functionality design via nano-chemistry procedures may control self-assembly for building blocks in nano-materials at different scale lengths. Therefore, consideration of nano-chemistry aspects as an appropriate option to control and modify the nano-material synthesis is required.

Using of two important concepts of nanoscopic and mesoscopic scale in nanochemistry help to clarify more complex nano-material structures. Also, they can apply to design, synthesis of desired shape, and size of nano-scale material in order to reduce toxicity impacts. Mesoscopic–scale is the length at which quantum mechanical behaviors in liquids or solids can be described by macroscopic concepts. For technical purposes, the nanoscopic scale is the size at the expected fluctuations of the average properties due to the motion and behavior of individual particles.

Research in nano-chemistry demands a multidisciplinary approach. A project plan may involve bulk synthetic chemistry to design a computational molecular model, using advanced microscopy techniques. In addition, the synthesis of newly designed molecules, specifically nano-scale particles, might be collected into complex architectures to make proper protocols for quality control and continual monitoring of nano-material toxicity and their toxic response dose.

The most important options in nano-chemistry contain: control of scale formation, computational materials chemistry, control of physico-chemical properties, control on research processes, and computational molecular modeling facility.

Based on a designed module of nano-chemistry [fig-2], two significant functions, synthesis and analysis in this area, have been considered. Improvement of this portion of the module in this study should consider some factors, such as the following: classification of items of nano-chemistry analysis concerns surface structure (charge, size, coating, area, and reactivity), chemical composition, dispersability, functionality, and durability. Special attention in the synthesis of a nano-chemistry module would be with respect to distinguishing nano-scopic and meso-scopic scales of nano-material to demonstrate physico-chemical characteristics relevant to nano-particles such as mass distribution, density, bio-reactivity, potential physical and chemical conversion into



various forms, and energy regarding experimental conditions [Fig-2].

Figure-2: Nano-Chemistry Module

To achieve a comprehensive nano-chemistry project, consideration of the following options is required: surface structure, quantum of nano-structure, reorganizations of fundamentals of natural and manufactured nano-materials and their applications, realization of bio-degradable property of nano-materials, and a focus on continual nano-technology improvement with entrepreneurship monitoring.

4-4 Design of nano-engineering module

Nano-engineering is the practice of engineering on a nano-scale. The concept of nano-engineering and its name have originated from the nano-meter, a unit of

measurement scale for equaling one billionth of a meter. The application of nanoengineering methods in science and technology is associated to atomic–scale design and closely related to nano-technology aspects. There are many applicable procedures and techniques in nano-engineering which are used to design, synthesize, and possibly alter synthesis processing and modification of nano-materials structure. The most significant of these techniques includes: photolithography, electron beam lithography, scanning tunneling microscope (STM), and molecular self –assembly.

In the photolithography method, using light to produce patterns in chemicals and then etching to expose the surface is important. This technique shares some fundamental principles with photography. The most important benefit for using this technique is that it is possible to control the shape and size of objects and to generate patterns over an entire surface simultaneously.

Electron beam lithography is similar to photolithography, but it is usually suggested to use electron beams instead of light. Electron beam lithography is the practice of scanning a beam of electrons in a patterned fashion across a surface covered with a film. The primary advantage of electron beam lithography is to control surface charging conditions of nano-particles. Scanning tunneling microscope (STM) can be used to both image and control structures as small as a single atom. STM application is based on the concept of quantum tunneling.

Using the molecular self-assembly technique causes a variety of different shapes and sizes of nano-materials under controlled conditions. Its application may associate with some major chemistry features such as noncovalent interactions (hydrogen bonding, metal coordinates), hydrophobic forces, and electrostatic effect. These items should be
taken into account in the design and synthesis of nano-materials. Some advantages using this method include: development of materials with size-dependent properties, and the ability to encode with manipulate biological molecules such as DNA.

Development and continued research in nano-scale science with respect to related engineering practices as a new step in many fields leads to novel and applicable technological procedures. Today, nano-engineering practices are moving to reduce adverse effects of nano-materials regarding critical features in this area, which include: computing and information technology, health care and biotechnology, environment, energy, transportation etc. Both advanced nano-science and nano-engineering practices would be able to assist in reducing risk toxicity of nano-material applications. Nanoengineering practices in some research areas, such as nano-instrumentation, nano-energy conversion, nano bioengineering, and nano-computing storage, are providing a proper and practical basis to develop the quality controlling procedures for nano-particles either in design, synthesis, or the reduction of harmful impacts [Fig-3].



Figure-3: Nano-Engineering Module

Currently, attempts of scientists and engineers are rapidly improving synthesis, design, and fabrication of the control materials at the molecular level and "nano-scale" in order to obtain a higher efficiency of energy, extend their applications in a wide range of various areas such as industrial, biological, and medical approaches.

Nano-technology as a highly qualified science concerns the unknown potential of nano-scale particles to damage the natural environment and human health. Reduction of the potential risks and hazards of unanticipated adverse consequences due to human or environmental exposure to engineered nano-materials is the primary, essential, and significant outcome of nano-engineering practices.

4-5 Toxicity pathways in natural environment

Generally, managing risks for toxicity evaluation could be extended for human and environmental health and safety. An entirely new risk assessment has been started to carry out an extensive analysis of potential risk and management in spite of insufficient data and current methodologies to estimate the hazards of nano material toxicity, particularly for toxicology and eco-toxicology studies, and also the lack of accurate exposure estimation, dose response, equipment to detect and measure NP in the air, water, or soil, but recently based on regulatory bodies in various fields. . To follow the challenge these critical objectives, a matrix might be developed to recognize the NP, their more complex nano-formulations which are likely to have special toxicological properties and also toxic action in different media in the natural environment.

Clearly, pollutants are transported away from their sources into various media and fields. The sources include natural and released chemical wastes from manufactured companies and industrial systems. Many toxic NM and NP also could transfer into either the natural environment or the human body. They may be physically, chemically, or biologically transformed. Possibly, they could accumulate in different fields such as air, water, sediment, and soil. The most particular alternatives for risk assessment of nano-materials in the natural environment by the specific chemical family type include: study of mass of NP and water partitioning at equilibrium, investigation of NM and NP partitioning between soil and water and partitioning between air and water, and solubility constants bio-concentration factors. These parameters may be integrated using data on sources, releases, and routes of the contaminant and toxic substances to estimate the significant exposure pathways. The common pathway for exposure is associated with

water (ground water, surface water), air, soil, and sediment. For the best applicable procedure to estimate exposure of NP and the potential risk assessment and management, the mental modeling may be used. For example, to evaluate air quality and air pollution control studies due to chemical emission, particularly NM which may be classified as (PM-10), the models of air dispersion in various predominated conditions could be used to predict the air concentrations and the emitted mass of NM into the air.

4-6 Toxicity in human health system

Nano-particles, as small-scale substances with unique properties, have complex exposure and health risk implications. Today, human health risk assessment is a critical part of nano-material toxicity evaluation. Characterization of airborne particles indicates that exposures will depend on particle behavior (e.g., disperse or aggregate) and that accurate, portable, and cost effective measurement techniques are essential for understanding exposure. Under many conditions, dermal penetration of nano-particles may be limited for consumer products such as sunscreens, although additional studies are needed on potential photo oxidation products, experimental methods, and the effect of skin condition on penetration. Carbon nano-tubes apparently have greater pulmonary toxicity (inflammation, granuloma) in mice than fine-scale carbon graphite, and their metal content may affect toxicity.

Recently, the most significant studies may help to realize the adverse effects of toxic NP action, achievement of required experimental tests to find out the toxicological endpoints, and exposure durations that are relevant for risk assessment. A proposed systemic toxicity task is an approach to systemic toxicity testing which could be one part of the overall assessment of a compound's potential that causes adverse effects on the

health system, particularly on the human body and metabolism process. The approach is designed to provide more relevant data for deriving reference doses for shorter time periods of human exposure. All available data, including toxico-kinetics and metabolism data and life stages information, are taken into account. The proposed testing methods approach has the potential to provide new risk assessment information for shorter human exposure durations while reducing the number of animals used and without compromising the sensitivity of the determination of longer term reference doses .

Significantly, in estimation impacts of toxic nano-material action on the health system, some particular objects must be considered, consisting of: health effects, methodology, toxico-kinetics, absorption, distribution, inhalation exposure, and ingestion exposure.

Nano-particles and nano-materials specifically manufactured NM might be released during disposal, destruction, and recycling. For this reason, a number of attempts may be achieved today to evaluate how these materials will be managed to minimize possible human and environmental exposure. Furthermore, these alternatives help to determine the life cycle regulation of NM and proposed standards for nanotechnology investigation and development of nano— materials application with reduction of their harmful effects.

Current knowledge of the human health effects and environmental concentrations of engineered NM and/or NP is not complete. Clearly, humans are already exposed to a wide range of natural and manufactured NM in the air, and exposure via the food chain, water supply, and medical applications as well. Most importantly, nano-toxicology studies have focused on animals, and cells in vitro, to realize the adverse effects on the

immune system, oxidative stress correlated to disorders, lung disease, and inflammation. However, the dose-response of NM to produce these impacts is high and this phenomenon could be possible if such exposure due to the environment and/or the work place occurs. Additionally, providing more data and information regarding exposure is required for risk analysis and computations. Recent regulation and legislation, however, do not particularly address NM and NP, but there are critical considerations concerning classification and recognition of nano-materials as novel nano-scale materials, and, possibly, they are under chemical regulation and legislation, as well as considerable current test methods.

4-7 Scientific tools in nano-particles toxicity assessment (in vivo and in vitro studies)

There are a number of various types of measurement methods available to study adverse impacts of toxic NM and NP either in the natural environment or human body. They include: in vitro and in vivo. These type studies need to provide an inclusive realization action and mechanisms for insensible effects of nano-materials.

Anin vitro study provides information on modes of actions and the underlying mechanisms at the level of proteins, bio-molecules, extracellular matrix, DNA, parenchyma, and immuno-competent cells and their compartments. In vivo methods are required to identify the biological relevance of the in vitro determined modes of actions and the underlying mechanisms in the more complex interplay among multiple cell types, within organs, and within the entire organism. The determination of dose-response relationships and of target organs and cells can only be determined in vivo. A major problem here is that the definition of dose is not standardized with respect to mass,

number, surface area, and other metrics. This hinders the objective analysis of the data and comparisons between materials [44]. In the case of nano-particles, target organs may not be restricted to the portal of entry, but may include secondary target organs and their cellular constituents, depending on the accessibility of nano-particles to these sites. Furthermore, interspecies differences need to be considered very carefully in any extrapolation to human effect assessment. Hence, a comprehensive effect assessment usually requires in vivo studies for dose-response relationships at target organs for nanoparticles to supplement the in vitro methods for understanding the modes of actions and underlying mechanisms.

Two most important approaches used for in vivo and in vitro studies include instillation and inhalation procedures. Instillation of particles into rat lungs has often been used in particle toxicology particularly for toxic NM. This mode of exposure is not physiological in the sense that there is usually a very high dose and dose rate, and, since the particles are suspended in saline, the lung surface receives particles contained in a liquid, which is likely to affect the defense systems of the lung. The advantage of instillation is that it involves the administration of a more precise nano-particle dose [44]. Inhalation is the physiological process during which nano-particles are deposited in the respiratory tract, allowing for a slow build-up of the dose and for normal clearance processes to occur. This is the only way to determine the amount of airborne concentration of suspended dust [44]. Additionally, determination of nano-particle doseresponse of their toxic action is not easy and its estimation needs to continually monitor breathing and the aerosol factors; tissue analysis must also be considered.

4-8 Toxicity evaluation model of nano-materials

Nano-particle toxicity evaluation is directly related to association of nano-particle characteristics and their toxicity. The most important parameters in toxicity assessment to determine the adverse health effects of nano-particles include: dose (the amount or quantity of substance that will reach a biological system), dimension, and durability. As we know, there is a different correlation between various physico-chemical properties of nano-materials which may associate to health effects and also some uncertainties such as mass, number, size, bulk or surface chemistry, aggregation, etc. [Fig-4].

Nano-toxicological studies have shown the most significant impact of small nanoparticles (<100 nm) is to damage the respiratory health system. Typically, the effectiveness of materials in small size and shape may be more than larger particles. Therefore, relationship between surface area of nano-particles and their toxicity would be easily understood. In fact, the smaller nano-particles with the higher surface area and particle number per unit mass, compared to larger particles are more toxic. This important objective leads to a change in description, definitions, and regulations associated with dose and exposure restrictions.

The human body has different reactions to the same mass and dosage of nanoparticles compared to micro-particles. The larger surface area could increase nanomaterials reactivity. Furthermore, for this reason, increasing the reactive oxygen species especially in aquatic media is expected, and in vitro experiments have demonstrated this issue.

More evidence of the toxic impacts of nano-materials directly might be associated with their different concentrations. Some certain nano-materials, however, have toxic

effects in many cases, but they are not toxic in all observations and studies. Hence, a comparison of the results of various studies and differences should be considered. These differences depend on the cumulative properties and characteristics of nano- particles. The appropriate methods in such studies are focused on consequences in the inherent discrepancies between inhalation studies and instillation or in vitro experiments [23]. Certain properties of nano-particles, which involve toxicity impacts, are functions of some aspects, including surface charge, material type, and size [Fig-4].

Generally, the chemistry of nano-particles and their chemical compositions and distinctions are critical in determining toxicity. In spite of the similarity in chemical composition of certain nano-materials, they may have a different chemical structure or crystalline, which influences their reactivity in various objects, especially in toxicity generation. Extrapolating the many outcomes of studies has revealed a similar extent for various nano-particle chemistries. Particle chemistry is especially relevant from the point of view of cell molecular chemistry and oxidative stress. Namely, depending on their chemistry, nano-particles can show different cellular uptake, sub-cellular localization, and ability to catalyze the production of reactive oxygen species [23].



Figure-4- Toxicity Evaluation Module

In toxicity assessment, the cumulative impacts of inhalation, ingestion, and/or dermal effects in the number of nano-particles are not known. However, risk estimation of in vivo and in vitro studies could reveal some particular features of nano-particle structure with a critical role in toxicity, which includes particle surface, surface coating, size magnetic, electric, optical properties, chemical reactivity, bio-reactivity, as well as the other physico-chemical properties. A comprehensive toxicity evaluation needs also to focus on the adverse effects of nano-particles originated from natural sources. These aspects in the natural environment contain short-term effects of ash, volcanic particulate pollutions, and volcanic soils. Some particular impacts on the health system include respiratory effects (nose and throat irritation, bronchitic symptoms) and eye and skin irritation, etc. [23]. Consideration in this area leads to obtain the superior perspective in risk assessment. In this practice we are able to distinguish the harmful effects produced from manufactured nano-particles and/or from natural sources.

The fabrication of nano-materials in different fields could assist to synthesize by many nano-engineering methods, including gas phase processes (flame pyrolysis), high temperature evaporation, and plasma synthesis; vapor deposition synthesis (electron, thermal, laser beam evaporation); and colloidal, or liquid phase methods in which chemical reactions in solvents lead to the formation of colloids. In addition, some mechanical processes and procedures contain grinding, milling, and alloying with respect to nano-material fabrication processes. Synthesis of almost any shape and size of material is possible. These nano-engineering practices also cause to modify nanomaterial structures in proper and applicable objects.

Chapter 5 Methodology framework for Toxicology and Eco-toxicology of nano- materials

Generally, the study of the toxicology of NM and NP in parallel with ecotoxicology of these toxic materials could lead to find appropriate test guidelines and an appropriate experiment and assessment strategy. The attained results from these combined studies may provide a wide basis guideline for assessment of the health risks of nano-particles, and measurement of the required factors in order to decrease risks of toxic NM at different levels (classification, organization, limit values, handling recommendations, measure concepts, etc.). Possibly, use of the existing system for testing toxicological properties, assessment parameters, and containment of health risks for toxic NM and NP could assist to modify them in various fields.

However, there is no comprehensive compilation of appropriate test guidelines and an appropriate assessment strategy for nano-scale substances, but focusing on available data and obtained information from various studies might be a fundamental option to create an appropriate viewpoint for evaluation of nano-particle toxicity. Many of these objectives may include: *in vivo* and *in vitro* methods, investigation of the size or surface coating of nano-materials which are effective on the human organism, consideration to extrapolate the new consequences to humans, engineering modification techniques on NM structure. Study on parameters that reflect particular features of NM action and their mechanisms illustrate the inhalation exposure effect on chronic and subchronic diseases and carcinogenicity.

In a risk-oriented test strategy, the distribution of a nano-particle and the type and level of exposure of humans and the environment should play a major role. A higher

need for information on the risks of nano-technology compared with other industrial chemicals is partially substantiated by the fact that nano-technology is seen as a new technology (emerging technology). New risk scenarios arise for which there are as yet no experience values and where there is special public interest. Currently, more studies are needed for new substances with the same properties than for existing substances. Here, it becomes clear that the attitude towards a dynamically changing technological world also constitutes an adjustable variable which influences the need for information about health and environmental risks. In order to be able to compare in a transparent manner the risks of substances from "existing" and "new" technologies, the test and assessment strategies should have common basic structures, but reflecting also the specifics of nano-particles. Then it becomes possible to undertake a comparative assessment also within the context of discussions about substance substitution. Hence, the existing test and assessment strategies must be considered as the foundation and, where necessary, adapted to the specific situation of nano-particles. In addition, a comprehensive evaluation strategy for nano-material toxicity should express the central tasks of specific approaches and major regulation, and then offer experimental tests based on engineering and science.

5-1 Information analysis

To build a scientific-engineered module, current knowledge regarding nanomaterials, experimental data obtained from different laboratory tests, and analytical measurements could be classified based on a related systematic method.

To contrast manufactured nano-materials and natural nano-particles, their characteristics need to be studied, along with unusual properties, survival and/or release

in the natural environment. The focus on the effects of eco-toxicity and bio-toxicity can find a point of view to recognize the influenced parameters.

Studies show many impressive elements in nano-material toxicity that has been involved to increase the amount of toxicity. These components are either dependent on the physicochemical structure of nano-materials or originated from synthesis procedures of nano-materials. In both cases, an in-depth observation may help to assess their values and distinguish whether they could be major variables to produce and increase toxicity, or if they act only as unchanged functions. Consequently, this outline will promote a comprehension of the required features to design a module configuration.

Table-4 Summary of the state of knowledge for nano-particles and controls.	
Awareness of knowledge	Content of Knowledge (Hazardous & Control)
1-What we know We Know	Health effect of ultrafine, air pollution, and fibers
	How to control ultrafine particles in the work place
	Importance of size, surface area and surface characteristics
	Serious health effects of some nano-particles in animals
	Translocation of some nano-materials along the olfactory nerve in animals
2-What we know We Know	Measurement and characterization techniques
	Hazardous of newly engineering particles
	Extent of translocation in body
	Interaction with contaminants in work place
	Importance of dermal exposure
	Health effects in workers
	Risk of workers
	Effectiveness of controls
	Advisability of medical screening and biological monitoring
	Risk to workers' family
3-What we know We Know	Extensive experience available in controlling hazardous substances and
	agents (radiation, biological agents, pharmaceuticals) that can be
	application to nano-particles information
	Lessons from pervious "new" technologies
4-What we know We Know	Unanticipated new hazards
	Unanticipated new controls
	Wrong assumptions about hazards and controls

Adapted from Drew and Schulte et al. Nanotechnology in the Workplace

Development of models and design of the proper modules to evaluate NM toxicity

recognition and to focus on required knowledge and proficiency in this area may lead to

an accurate viewpoint and derive the right pathway of systematic study and investigation. Table 4 contains these imperative issues that undoubtedly are the first step in an assessment of NM action we need to consider.

The mental modeling in this study is formed based on a description of standard risk assessment, a response assessment of nano-materials toxicity, hazardous identification, risk characterization, hypothesized relationship between risk assessment and management to regulation, and safety assessment. The two most significant components in risk assessment toxicity and exposure are affected by the mentioned parameters. In addition, a consideration of up-taking capacity, fate, and transpiration, aggregation, durability, and life cycle issues could help to illustrate the complexity of toxicity and the exposure functionality of toxic nano-particles.

5-2 Toxicity evaluation for nano-scale materials, [Fullerenes, TiO2, ZNO]

In order to provide a sensible pathway of NM toxicity evaluation, three nanoscale substances [Fullerenes (CNTs, C60), TiO2, and ZNO] have been studied. Design of three modules of their toxicity evaluation as an appropriate result may help to develop RA and RM of nano- material toxicity behavior either in the environment or the human health system.

5-3 Module of toxicity evaluation of ZNO

Zink oxide as an important chemical compound is nearly insoluble in water but soluble in acids and alkalis. It may occur as white hexagonal crystals and/or a white powder. Zinc oxide also exists in the natural environment as the mineral zincite. Today zinc oxide is known as applicable types of oxides family because of its unique optical,

semiconducting, piezoelectric, and magnetic properties. ZnO as a nano-particle indicates particular properties, including high catalytic efficiency and strong ability in adsorption. The ZNO structure is usually manufactured using electron beam lithography, photolithography, or x-ray lithography techniques [Fig-5].



Figure-5: Module of Toxicity Evaluation of ZNO

In this processing, the focus on the ability to define position, size, and density of nano-structures on surfaces is required. In addition, however, these techniques are applicable in nano-engineering practices but are limited via a multistage, timeconsuming, and costly preparation procedure. Currently, a particular engineering method is known which includes combining nano-sphere self-assembly lithography and the vapor-liquid-solid (VLS) approach of fabricating periodic array of catalyst dots in a different geometry and subsequently growing vertically aligned ZnO nano-wires [30]. In this technique, engineering modification and alteration in the structure of ZNO in order to reduce toxicity effects are possible. Metal oxide nano-particles, specifically ZNO, however, have an application in various commercial products. Consideration of their environmental fate, potential toxicity, and adverse impacts should be taken into account. Study on bioavailability of nano-particles, which is significantly greater than larger particles, causes progress in toxicity evaluation. Chemical investigations using equilibrium dialysis demonstrated rapid dissolution of ZNO nano-particles in a freshwater medium (pH 7.6), with saturation solubility in the milligram per liter range the same as with bulk ZNO. Therefore, this point is considerable in the formation and fabrication of ZNO with different morphologies via the thermal evaporation technique. One of the most particular methods in the preparation of engineered ZNO is using flow field-flow fractionation. This separation technique could help to determine the particle size and distributions (PSD) of ZNO, which may spike in soil suspensions. In this practice, determination of the amount of spiked ZNO concentration, the PSD of engineered nano-particles, and monitoring their partitioning and stability in soil suspensions are possible. In engineering practices, in order to do quality control and possibly modification and/or alteration in fabrication of ZNO, the focus on the characteristics of zinc-oxide powder activation is considerable. ZNO tribo-physically could be activated in high-energy and modifies physico-chemical properties. Probably this action may reduce the toxicity effects of zinc oxide.

5-4 Module of toxicity evaluation of TiO2

Titanium dioxide is known as titanium (IV) oxide or Titania. Naturally occurring oxides of titanium may exist in the environment. Titanium dioxide compounds in nature are not pure and possibly could be found with contaminant metals such as iron. These oxides in the natural environment can be mined as a source for commercial titanium. Titanium dioxide has a large variety of applications because of some surface properties such as a photo catalyst in heterogeneous catalysis and in solar cells, etc. In fact, TiO2 is a significant single-crystalline system in the surface science of metal oxides. One of the most important characteristics of TiO2 is correlated to the structure, stability of TiO_2 surface and molecular dynamics simulations [fig-6]. The surface defect and its relation to stoichiometric cases have the major role in the reactivity properties of TiO2. These options may be considered in nano-engineering practices in order to modify and control the structure of TiO2 to reduce its toxicity effects. Today, the antibacterial activity of TiO2 has important implications for ecosystem health. Toxicity evaluation of TiO2 in water suspensions as a common additive with a unique material at the nano-scale size is considerable. One significant project could focus on the relative toxicity of TiO2, SiO2, and ZNO water suspensions towards bacteria (B. subtilis, E. coli). Results show these three photosensitive nano-materials are hazardous for all aquatic organisms. In addition, toxicity may increase with particle concentration. Toxicity of the three oxides can reduce from ZNO to TiO2 and then to SiO2 based on natural conditions. Studies show antibacterial activity under both dark and light conditions and also indicate additional mechanisms related to growth inhibition. In this specific case, the nominal particle size is not effective for their toxicity. These results may be considerable during usage and

disposal of such manufactured nano-materials to prevent inadvertent environmental impacts. The importance of further research on the mechanisms and factors in this area may improve our viewpoints in risk assessment of toxicity.



Figure-6: Module of Toxicity Evaluation of TiO2

One of the most important methods for engineering control of TiO2 is to focus on low Back Electron Transfer in Surface-Modified TiO₂ as nano-particles. It is sensitized by Alizarin Interfacial electron transfer dynamics of alizarin-sensitized. Surfacemodified and unmodified TiO₂ may be studied with respect to specific transient absorption spectroscopy .Other nano-engineering practices to modify the surface of TiO₂ nano-particles could be done via sodium dodecyl benzyl sulfonate (DBS). Some TiO2 compounds such as pathogenic dust alpha-quartz have the main role in air pollution and cause adverse pulmonary health effects, especially in individuals with preexisting lung disease [Fig-6]. Currently, there are concerns about the toxicity of TiO2 in cosmetics and sunscreen consumption. TiO2 as a physical sunscreen could reflect and scatter UVB (290-320 nm) and UVA (320-400 nm) light rays. Therefore, predication of the skin-damaging portion of the solar spectrum is possible. In addition, TiO2 may absorb UV radiation, though, which in an aquatic environment influences the production of reactive oxygen species. The reactivity of these oxygen species causes damage to DNA. Titanium dioxide particles also, under UV irradiation, suppress tumor growth in cultured human bladder cancer cells.

Titanium dioxide (TiO2) is a poor soluble with low-toxicity which has been shown to produce lung tumors in many types of rats. Possible evaluation of the rat doseresponse might be conducted as a quantitative risk assessment for TiO2 toxicity. Two other toxicity impacts of TiO2 created chronic pulmonary inflammation in rats and an in vitro study showed a pro-inflammatory effect in cultured human endothelial cells.

5-5 Module of toxicity evaluation of Fullerenes

Fullerenes are a family of carbon allotropes; the molecule is composed of carbon and could be in the form of a hollow sphere, ellipsoid, tube, or plane. A common application of fullerenes occurs in sunscreen productions and television. Two specific types in the Fullerenes family contain Bucky balls, which are spherical, and carbon nanotube or bucky tubes in cylindrical form. Nano-tubes are similar to the structure of C60. This type of fullerenes has a wide range of applications in industry and medical practices.

The most significant chemical characteristics of Fullerenes include stability (because of its particular composition), unique electrical, mechanical, and thermal properties [Fig-7] with wide applications in the electronics, computer, aerospace, and other industries. The reactivity of fullerenes is related to electophilic addition at 6,6-double bonds, which reduces angle strain by changing sp²-hybridized carbons into sp³-hybridized ones. This characterisitic, however, causes stable fullerenes, but may not be totally unreactive in specific conditions.



Figure-7: Module of toxicity evaluation of Fullerenes

Usually, fullerenes (C_{60}) are synthesized under high pressure and high temperature conditions. Studies show fullerene molecules are three-dimensionally

polymerized types. In addition, synthesis of some superhard materials produced from fullerenes under high pressure conditions may complicate via a poor crystallinity of samples.

Fullerenes released in the environment have adverse impacts on living organisms in the soil. Manufactured nano-materials especially could enter the soil with bio-solids in which they originated from waste treatment processes. They also may enter the soil following a spill during manufacturing processing and possibly due to accidents. The particular solvent used in preparation of fullerenes should be considered since some effects on the natural environment have been observed, but its mechanism and processing are unknown. The most important obtained results show, however, that the levels of oxygen and enzyme activity have not been affected. But there are some impacts of fullerenes on bacterial diversity, as well as some effects on the structure and function of the soil microbial community and microbial processes. Hence, there is no doubt that under natural and real conditions in the environment, the exposure pathway could affect toxicity and cause harmful impacts.

In order to reduce the harmful effects of fullerenes, there are a number of engineering practices in this area. The initially uncoated fullerenes can be modified with biocompatible coating. Fullerenes C60 can be formed as an aqueous suspended colloid [nC60]. However, some scientific reports describe the toxicity of fullerenes (C60) as a water–soluble nano-particle that has no specific toxicity resulting from the inhalation exposure to C60. But, possibly, the red-ox activity of fullerenes as a lipophilic molecule could cause oxidative damage in an aquatic species [35]. Other adverse toxicity impacts of fullerenes cause lung damage in mammals. Specifically, this toxicity has been

observed in a body of rats [37]. The toxicity of CNTs is related to a multitude of morphologies, size, and chemical fictionalization of their surface or ends. The characteristics of hydrophobicity of CNTs structure and also the tendency to aggregate have harmful effects for living cells in the culturing process.

Chapter 6 Risk assessment and risk management

In this chapter, the most significant objects related to RA and RM of NMs toxicity are reviewed. Consideration of these fundamental components may result in the design of a comprehensive model of RA and RM of NMs toxicity.

6-1-Methodology of risk assessment for toxic nano-materials

Risk assessment is a fundamental evaluation, identification, quantification, and communication of the risk (potential hazard) due to a particular action and/or activity, such as use or occurrence of a toxic chemical. Commonly assessing the risk routinely correlates to an estimation of the exposure to chemical elements and compounds. One of these important chemicals is the nano-scale substance with a wide range application in the world of new technology. The critical features in the methodology of risk assessment for nano-material toxicity include the association of risk assessment and risk management. An essential purpose has the major role to realize and estimate the potential risk and hazards of NM action either in the natural environment or the human health system.

In risk management, the ultimate decisions are based on the attained results from identification, quantification, and communication of risk assessment in different media and fields. Moreover, possibly during the regulatory process, risk management experts may order an additional investigation and study on risk assessments and dependent parameters to provide more mechanistic data and required information. Hence, this segment leads to justify risk management decisions and regulations as well.

Risk assessments of toxic NM and NP may be conducted as an individual chemical and/or for complex mixtures of chemicals. In cases of such complex mixtures as hazardous waste sites, the process of risk assessment itself becomes quite complex. This complexity has resulted from simultaneous exposure of many substances with the potential for numerous chemical and biological interactions, and exposures by multiple media and pathways (e.g., via water, air, sediment, and soil) [52]. In the methodology of risk assessment associated with nano-material toxicity, two significant and applicable scientific tools, in vivo and in vitro studies, are responsible to explain the mechanistic action of toxic NM and NP in natural media and the human body (biological impacts). To develop a framework for a hypothesized system, sufficient knowledge and collected experimental data are necessary. The most important factors to build this systematic outline and design modules, sub-modules, diagrams, and models must be associated with available results in terms of potential risk for the natural environment and human health. Consideration of nano-chemistry aspects and nano-engineering techniques is the best option to modify the synthesis toxic nano-particles in order to either remove or reduce their harmful impacts.

The general principles in this study to design the mental modeling of risk assessment and management are associated to develop protocols with respect to the correlation of nano-particle characteristics, properties, their toxicity, and exposure features. The focus on complicated technical issues and understanding the complexity in various portions of this research could lead to identify particular factors to obtain a complete and organized framework of toxicity risk assessment.

The contribution of new information in terms of toxicity reduction of nanomaterials, the clarification value of objective evidence, the demonstration of analytical data are the appropriate tools to recognize and suggest practical procedures in nanoengineering practices to challenge with nano-particle toxicity. In addition, the development of applicable methods and an estimate of quantities and qualities aspects are the particular benefits in this scenario.

The focus on a combination of environmental and nano-engineering aspects, as an advanced phenomenon in this specific system, is a great guideline to design a comprehensive model associated with the relationship of risk assessment and risk management to developed regulations.

6-2 Risk characterizations

One of the considerable steps in NM toxicity evaluation is to estimate the frequency and severity of impacts in exposed populations. Conclusions reached concerning hazardous identification and exposure assessment are integrated to yield probabilities of effects likely to occur in humans exposed under similar conditions. Since most risk assessments include major uncertainties, it is important that biological and statistical uncertainties are described in risk characterization. The assessment should identify which components of the risk assessment process involve the greatest degree of uncertainty [52]. In many cases, to determine the risk characterization of NM and NP, the multiple chemical exposures and multiple exposure pathways might be considered. Furthermore, an estimation of dose-response to produce toxicity effects is required. This objective could lead to obtain more information on the mechanisms of NM and NP actions, and also provide data due to its biological and ecological interactions.

6-3 Hazardous identification

As a general identification of toxic chemical hazards, specifically nano-scale substances and/or compounds, three types of data resulting from related experimental tests are achievable, which include: human epidemiological data, animal bioassay data, and supporting data. These important data and formations might be collected, analyzed, and taken into account as the valuable evidence approach.

Human epidemiological data are the most desirable and are given highest priority since it avoids the concern for species differences in the toxic response in practice. Animal bioassay data are often the primary data used in risk assessment. Animal studies are well-controlled experiments with known exposures and employ detailed, careful clinical and pathological examinations. Supporting data derived from cell and biochemical studies may help the risk assessor make meaningful predictions as to a likely human response [52]. The dose-response assessment step quantifies the hazards, which were identified in the hazard evaluation phase. It determines the relationship between dose and the incidence of effects in humans. There are normally two major extrapolations required: the first is from high experimental doses to low environmental doses and the second from animal to human doses. The procedures used to extrapolate from high to low doses are different for assessment of carcinogenic effects and noncarcinogenic effects. Carcinogenic effects are not considered to have a threshold and mathematical models are generally used to provide estimates of carcinogenic risk at very low dose levels [52]. These consequences could identify the dependent factors in toxicity of NM and NP. Determination of dose-response from nano-materials toxicity and its

evaluation also are the other particular parameters in this area which have the specific function in risk assessment and management.

6-4 Exposure assessment

In risk assessment of toxic nano-materials, the exposure estimation and its evaluation could help to illustrate the hazards of toxic NM and NP action and also present a threat. Exposure assessment in this area would emphasis the potential exposure of nano-scale materials and also the waste released, movement, effects on ecological and biological system and fate in the natural environment may be considered. Three significant objectives in exposure evaluation include: classification of the exposure setting (determination of sources), recognition of exposure pathways particularly in various natural media (air, soil, water, surface water, etc.), and quantification of the exposure function and life cycle of exposure as well [Fig-8].



Figure-8 Module of exposure life cycle

Many important variables, either directly or indirectly, are effective for exposure assessment, including: exposed population, duration of exposure, field of exposure (human body and/or natural media), and the type of nano-scale materials (singles and/or as a chemical compound), etc. (Fig-9). In fact, toxic nano-particles might be transported away from the source in three pathways: physically, chemically, or biologically transformed. Furthermore, they can be accumulated in different natural media and/or various sites associated with the human health system. Commonly, the actual measurements of exposures are often not available, so exposure models may be used. For example, in air quality studies, chemical emission and air dispersion models are used to predict air concentrations to downwind residents.



Figure-9: Module of Exposure Assessment

Significantly, consideration of predominant conditions in exposure measurement may lead to distinguish the potential hazardous and threat of exposure in the natural environment and also in the human health system. Some specific features in the natural environment include: climate, vegetation, type of soil, and other physical conditions as well. Additionally, the particular conditions for toxic NM and NP in a higher level of exposure in the health system may increase the amount of sensitivity of exposure effects for infants, the elderly, pregnant women, and people with chronic disease.

6-5- Carcinogenic and Non-carcinogenic Risk Assessment

In a study of carcinogenic risk assessment, the most important viewpoint is to focus on inhaled low toxicity and low solubility particles, including nano-particles and

nano-materials. Some of these toxic nano-scale substances create lung tumors in rodent models by mechanisms similar to those found with fine particles. These mechanisms include DNA damage and increased cell proliferation associated with a persistent irritation and chronic inflammation in the lungs. The metric driving this response is still unclear, but the surface area has the strongest support from toxicological evidence. However, the high surface area dose of nano-particles may mean that the rat lung overload is likely to be a powerful confounding issue in laboratory tests. Simply based on their higher surface area, nano-particles may have a stronger potency to induce lung tumors. No increase in extra pulmonary tumors has been seen in inhalation studies, but little information is available from chronic nano-particle administration. Current animal testing methodology is believed to be sufficient to detect the carcinogenic hazard of nano-particles [52]. Recent methodology obtained from experimental data which resulted from animal testing has demonstrated the carcinogenic hazard of nano-particles. Since there is no adequate data and available information to explain the extrapolation to humans, therefore, study on these harmful impacts in the human health system are impossible. The dose-response for non-carcinogenic effects could be determined based on the reliability and quality of the data. Furthermore, to attain an appropriate realization and clear illustration, some modification factors might be used. These parameters cause risk assessors to use scientific judgment in upgrading or downgrading the total uncertainty factor. The uncertainty factors or safety factors have the major role to indicate the dose response for non-carcinogenic and toxic effects of chemicals, specifically nanomaterials in various media.

Risk assessments are also conducted to derive permissible exposure levels for acute or short-term exposures to chemicals, specifically toxic NM and NP. Animal doses must be converted to human dose equivalents. The human dose equivalent is based on the assumption that different species are equally sensitive to the effects of a substance per unit of body weight or body surface area. [52].

6-6 Risk assessment and testing methods (controlling methods)

The illustration and understanding of toxicological mechanisms, enhanced testing capabilities, and demands for more sophisticated data for safety and health risk assessment have generated international interest in improving the current testing standard for some important chemicals.

To address this need, a large and diverse group of international experts propose to develop a credible and viable testing approach that includes scientifically appropriate studies that are necessary without being redundant, and that emphasize toxicological endpoints and exposure durations relevant for risk assessment. The benefits of the proposed approach include improved data for risk assessment, greater efficiency, use of fever animals, and better use of resources. From the outset of this attempt, it was unanimously agreed that a tiered approach should be designed to incorporate existing knowledge on the chemistry, toxicology, and actual human exposure scenarios of the compound, with integration of studies on metabolism/kinetics, life stages, and systemic toxicities. Three international task forces were charged with designing study types and endpoints on metabolism/kinetics, life stages, and systemic toxicities to be used in the tiered approach. [51].

6-7 Risk assessment and risk management model of nano-material toxicity

Today, most studies, investigations, and concerns focus on human health and environmental risks of nano-materials. In fact, the high volume of data and information in this area are associated with the action of nano-particles in various fields and harmful impacts. There are many critical aspects in risk assessment of nano-material toxicity which should be considered, for example, surface nano-scale features related to coatings. Engineered nano-topographical features may have specific characterizations and unique physicochemical properties as well.

Obviously, the types of nano-materials could be characterized by the smallest amount - about one dimension below 100 nm, which indicates particular and possibly unique physico-chemical properties. The quick growing period of nano-material applications needs rapid evaluation of nano-science, nano-technology, exposure assessment, and the continual monitoring of nano-particles occupation, specifically their impacts.

As the primary step in risk evaluation of toxic NM and NP, the focus need to be on approaches to the controlling methods in order to provide comprehensive assessment. Any new information needs to be obtained regarding nano-scale characteristics of materials which correlate to risk assessment and management. Thus, to provide this required information and data into a systemic framework, consideration must be given to many critical objectives regarding the accurate pathway of RA and RM of NMs toxicity. Figure 10 introduces many of these essential aspects in this area.

A study of nano-material activities indicating the different classifications and labeling compared to bulk material leads to superior risk estimation and assessment in

this area. Consequently, many testing methods, which are applicable in risk assessment, should be applied at the various levels of nano-particle actions. This consideration may generate novel ideas and proper opinions on risk assessment methodologies. This programming and practices may provide a wide basis and sensible organization to determine the appropriateness for nano-materials and present extensive proposals to progress in proper places.



Figure-10 Relationship of Key Science Questions to Support Risk Assessment and Management Decisions; Based on Comprehensive Environmental Assessment (Davis and Thomas, 2006)

Technically, all procedures for risk assessment of nano-material toxicity emphasizes the reorganization of various forms and predominant conditions, information of synthesis methods and manufactured nano-particles, as well as exposure to all forms of nano-scale substances in different fields. Commonly, there are many natural sources and naturally occurring types of nano-particles in the environment, such as some nano-scale particles that have originated from combustion processes. Therefore, in risk assessment, consideration must be given to manufactured nano-materials as well as natural nanoparticles.

Nano-particle actions in the natural environment involve too many processes which most of the time cause insensible impacts. These incidents consist of dynamic interactions within different media (water, soil, air, sediment) which may alter over time; dissolution; agglomeration; disagglomeration; coalescence; and adsorption of other substances onto their surfaces as well. There is no doubt these actions of nano-materials in the environment are significantly associated with many features such as size, shape, surface area and its reactivity, surface geometric and coating, etc. Risk assessments and a management framework may be designed based on study and investigation of impacts on the natural environment and the human health system [Fig-11].

Study on nano-engineering and nano-chemistry may provide an appropriate perspective of the hazardous effects of nano-materials and their toxicity. According to this description, all these observations critically depend on physico-chemical properties of nano-materials, including elemental composition, chemical reactivity of surface, density, crystal structure, solubility, charge, conductivity, melting point, hardness, magnetic and optical properties, morphology, size and size distribution, surface area, and surface layer composition. Evidently these aspects of nano-materials could change with different periods of time and conditions.

General principles for approaching risk assessment of nano-material toxicity would take into consideration the measurement and exposure estimates of manufactured nano-scale substances [Fig-11]. Particularly, an estimation of exposure to ambient nanoparticles such as natural sources of nano-particles from combustion should be taken into

account. Although current data are mostly based on the mass distribution of nanomaterials, a necessarily developed model might be designed according to cumulative information and data in all relevant features, such as overall exposure, toxicity inhalation, uptake of nano-particles, nano—particle toxicity dosage, etc.

In exposure evaluation in order to design an inclusive model of risk assessment and management, some general approaches may be considered which include toxicokinetics of nano-scale substances (absorption, distribution, metabolism, and excretion) and the size of nano-materials and their surface functionality.

One of the significant components in a risk assessment and management model is critically associated with potential toxicity impact of manufactured nano-materials in the health system of the human body. Significantly, in a study of nano-toxicity of nanomaterials with respect to human health and the biological field, significant issues which may involve nano-toxicity behavior include immunotoxicity, neurotoxicity, mutagenicity, genotoxicity, and carcinogenicity.

On the basis of current knowledge, the risk characterization of bulk material documents cannot be directly extrapolated to nano-materials. The mechanisms of toxic effects of engineered nano-particles may be dominated by those characteristics that describe their functionalities for products of interest, and possibly including surface reactivity and quantum effects. Therefore, any unpredicted interactions between nano-particles and biological systems may depend on their unique physical and chemical properties and their multiple functionalities.

Clearly, a majority of the issues about estimation of risk, toxicity evaluation, and exposure measurement of nano-particles are not adequately known and understood.
Therefore, consideration of some critical factors and also uncertainties may lead to a superior viewpoint to realize and make a comprehensive framework of modeling which could be applicable and proper in various fields of nano-particle application. Many of these uncertainties and parameters include:

-Estimation of the presence of nano-particles in the environment (air, water, soil) that may be correlated to the rates of agglomeration, dis-agglomeration, and degradation of nano-scale substances,

-Clarification of toxicity mechanisms in different fields,

-Determination of metrics to measure amount of exposure,

-Occurrences of nano-particles in various natural environments and transferring between different media,

-Illumination of translocation of nano-materials in different parts of the body and a study of their degradation,

A consideration of the life cycle of nano-particles as an essential factor obviously helps to clarify the harmful impacts of these materials [Fig-11]. Generally, various exposure displaying may occur during the life cycle of nano-particles, manufacturing processes, distribution, use, application, storage, waste disposal, and recycling. On other hand, the human body might be exposed, directly and/or indirectly, through contamination consumed in the food chain via manufactured and engineered nanomaterials. An estimation of the potential risks of released nano-materials from a variety of possible sources in the natural environment may be associated with many fundamental parameters, processing, and mechanisms which they directly or indirectly involve due to toxicity impacts and distribution in the environment. Briefly, the most fundamental factors in risk assessment modeling include distribution in various media, deposition on substrata of the natural environment, exposure of environmental species in various media (air, water, sediment, soil), the amount of nano-scale particles concentration, the occurrence of nano-materials within the environment and biota, NP taking via biota which generates toxicity, measurement of exposure in environmental species to toxic NP that depends on their ecology and feeding modes.



Figure-11: Risk Assessment and Management Model

In vivo studies as other particular tools in toxicity evaluation and risk assessment of nano-particles could be taken into account. In some recent studies, some selected animals were used for hazard recognition, which correlated with the properties of

engineered nano-particles compared to bulk particles. In addition, most in vivo protocol studies significantly have focused on translocation of nano-particles from the portal of entry into circulation and towards accumulation in secondary target organs in the human body. The most particular vision of in vivo studies requires using specialized techniques and molecular techniques.

In vitro studies and experiments may provide essential information related to mechanistic data on toxicology on nano-scale materials in various applications.

Generally, many in vitro studies could describe and demonstrate differences between low and high toxicity of nano-particles. In vitro investigations and experiments may be accomplished based on properties and characteristics of nano-particles that the most significant components contain: bio-persistence, free radical generation, cellular toxicity, cell activation, and other generic endpoints.

Eco-toxicity testing is a sufficient procedure to determine the bioavailability in risk assessment and management of nano-particle toxicity. This experimental testing could realize and recognize the uptake, distribution, clearance, and elimination of nanoparticles in various fields; behavior of nano-materials in the natural environment; and estimate the main exposure and uptake route for environmental species. Furthermore, to

obtain more data and information needs to be gathered regarding species sensitivity towards toxicity of nano-particles and their adverse impacts. In spite of the existing advantages of eco-toxicity testing, development of a novel and standardized methods in this area also is indeed required [Fig-11].

In standard risk assessment, the bioaccumulation of toxic nano-materials could be achieved via an estimation of the Bio-concentration Factor (BCF). Determination of the bioaccumulation potential needs to provide information on uptake and kinetics characteristics, as well as metabolism and other influenced factors. These data and information may be available for a variety of different chemicals. Hence, standard evaluation and assessments in this area normally could be done based on physicochemical properties and structural parameters.

6-7-1 Quantitative analysis versus Qualitative devices

In order to develop all steps of risk assessment associated with nano-material toxicity, the focus on quantitative analysis as well as qualitative devices in various criteria at the same time is required. The most important benefits of this procedure consist of an increase in the lifetime of risk assessment, expansion of extrapolating range, development of methodology, and extension of potential risk estimation [Figure-12].



Figure-12 Quantitative Analysis and Qualitative Devices

Quantitative analysis may be computed via three particular terms and variables related to RA and RM analysis, which include: single loss expectancy (SLE):

[SLE= Asset Value (AV) * Exposure Factor (EF)], annualized rate of occurrence

(ARO) [to determine the probability of a risk occurring, etc; in a manufacturing

company), and annualized loss expectancy (ALE)[ALE = SLE * ARO] [Fig- 12].

6-8 Risk assessment and management development to standard regulations

The quantitative measurement of particles in the nano range is still in the development phase and far from being routine. However, it is very important in order to be able to assess environmental and health risks. No national or international

standardization of measurement techniques is currently available and the measurement strategies for workplace measurements or epidemiological studies have not yet been elaborated. Therefore, almost no measurement data with engineered nano-particles have been published, in addition to mass concentration, and other parameters like, for instance, particle number concentration, agglomeration, size, and surface as well. The starting points for further research plans should be a review of the measurement technology currently available for determining exposure (Nano-Care). Furthermore, emphasis should be placed more particularly on the further development of portable measurement devices. This is the decisive requirement for carrying out epidemiological studies at a later stage. At the same time, in-company measurements should be stepped up using the available measurement technology in order to obtain initial findings on exposure to nanoparticles and, secondly, to create a knowledge base for the elaboration of measurement strategies for "routine workplace measurements" and for epidemiological studies. Taking measurements in plants must offer advantages to the companies who produce, process, or use nano-particles, as their co-operation is the precondition for carrying out the measurements.

The goal of the projects is to further develop and standardize measurement methodology and to make possible routine applications with portable devices.

Generally, the two most significant objectives in using P2 methods to make standard regulation in development of risk assessment include regulatory challenges and immediate regulatory needs. Studies show the environmental evaluation and proper decision for regulation in order to reduce and/or reduce toxic effects of NM and NP is

complex and there is no appropriate and standard proposed approach for a systematic regulation framework.

A systematic regulatory framework to evaluate nano-material toxicity may be developed in various ways using scientific investigation, harmonizing with the obtained results of international efforts, and using experimental data and information. Determination of difficulties due to toxic effects of NM and NP either in the natural environment or in the human health system may be studied in many phases with different conditions, such as shorter and longer-term objectives in evaluation and risk assessments. These proposed objectives could assist to develop a systematic regulatory framework.

The significance of a responsible regulation outline for toxicity evaluation of nano-scale substances may be identified using collaboration on the underpinning scientific issues, international efforts towards understanding the properties, effects, and behaviors of nano-materials, the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD), and the International Organization for Standardization (ISO) [23].

Providing a systematic and standard regulation in risk assessment of nanomaterial toxicity needs to focus on some considerable principles in various sites and conditions. Two most imperative guidelines consist of development of communication with industry and the public and creation of a collection of fundamental information, improvement of legislative modification, and establishment of standard terminology and organization of a standard nomenclature system.

There is an appropriate international program to make standard regulation for toxicity evaluation of NM and NP which includes a voluntary and a mandatory program that would target nano-materials deliberately manufactured or engineered. The types of

information requested would include substance identification; use patterns, including applications and quantities of use; physical-chemical properties; fate and behavior data; and health and environmental effects. Furthermore, information on natural nanomaterials, incidental nano-material by-products, and nano-materials in research and development would also be informative [23].

Companies or parties who manufacture, import, process, or use nano-materials will be asked to submit available information on those substances. The types of information that could be sought under an information gathering initiative may be similar to the current data requirements for chemicals and polymers. Additional data specific to nano-materials (e.g., agglomeration, surface fictionalization) would be useful as well. In addition, there are some organizations which are responsible for working on manufactured and engineered nano-materials and also for examining properties and endpoints required for safety testing of nano-materials. The EPA as an appropriate environmental organization has many related research programs for risk assessment and risk management of NMs toxicity. Appendixes A and B [P-97] introduce link activities described, based on EPA strategy and regulation in this area.

Chapter 7

7-1 Discussion:

Modeling of risk assessment of nano-material toxicity as a proper practice could estimate the potential hazardous of nano- engineered particles in various fields. There is no doubt this objective might be dependent on physical-chemical properties of nanomaterials. The most significant impacts of toxic nano-scale substances could be studied on the natural environment and the human health system.

Particularly, in each stage of nano-particle life cycle, the presence of their exposure is possible. Therefore, many specific nano-materials may have unique behaviors either in the natural environment in the various media (water, soil, air, and sediment) or on the human body. In both fields, the harmful effects of nano-material toxicity could be predictable. Some of the specific nano-scale materials indicate interactions with biological systems that correlate with their nano-structure. Clearly, most parameters of toxicokinetics and mechanisms of their action processing are unknown and there are no sufficient data and information in this area. Significantly, many uncertainties limit design of appropriate methodologies for various types of nano-particles and different species. Therefore, this difficulty in turn limits design of appropriate models of assessment and also may not provide an accurate framework to propose regulations and firm rules. In spite of this restriction, nano-chemistry and nano-engineering practices, as two fundamental options, help to recognize potential hazardous of manufactured nanoparticles and also provide facilities to control and even reduce these harmful effects.

Formulation of risk assessment and management are based on the data resulted from toxicity evaluation on human health and natural environment studies. In the human

health area, the common methodology must illustrate the appropriate manner to identify hazards of NM toxicity. Measurement of mass concentration could be one method to determine the amount of nano-particle dosage. In the assessment of human health hazards, however, an estimation of exposure by using recent methodologies is limited and incomplete, but focusing on biological mechanisms due to toxic nano-particle reactions in the human body leads to certain data and information for this imperative objective. Studies also have demonstrated that not totally nano-scale substances are more toxic and harmful than the bulk formulation of these types of materials. Consequently, using nanoengineering and nano-chemistry for all nano-particle formulations in different fields and application should be considered.

Today, identification of certain impacts of nano-material action in the framework of two essential systems consisting of in vivo and vitro studies is possible. Furthermore, attention to these optional systems conventionally leads to follow an alteration in the physical-chemical properties of nano-particles (agglomeration, dissociation, and adsorption of environmental substances, etc.), which in specific cases may occur.

Current methodology procedures in this area emphasize continuously monitoring effects of nano-particles in the environment, pursue experimental testing particularly ecotoxicity tests, study kinetics of the particulate phase, and predicate environmental concentrations as well. These imperative parameters lead to proposed standardized protocols and applicable practices. Basically, the most important approaches in this area consist of altering exposure and dose-effect toxicity of nano-materials and their physicochemical properties over time, such as slow degradation, uptake, distribution, and

clearance; providing quantitative risk characterization; and estimating potential chemical and physical conversion into different forms of nano-particles.

Finally, the required step to design an accurate model for risk assessment and management, which depends on obtaining sufficient data and information, is related to exposure and hazard of engineered nano–particles. Additionally, development to set up a wide basis for a cost-effective framework to evaluate potential risks and hazards of toxic nano-materials is necessary.

7-2 Conclusion

To achieve significant results, studies and challenges of risk assessment and management for toxicity effects of nano-materials in various fields, considering traditional risk assessment manners and risk management procedures is required. Clearly, multi-criteria pathway for ultimate decisions can be reached by analysis of perspectives to support regulation-planning. These requirements are due to an existing limitation of knowledge basis, lack of sufficient data, uncertainty, and variability. Certainly, an accurate manner to evaluate potential risk and adaptive management for nano-material toxicity effects is associated with the value of gained data and information from engineered analysis. This approach may provide an efficient and methodical device as a systematic organization to explain the mechanism of nano-material dynamic features, which are involved with nano-material actions, and their risk assessment and management. Therefore, focusing on these critical aspects as well as consideration of novel data on main social concerns and economic priorities can improve our perspective to design a proper model and develop goals in this area [Fig-1].

To design mechanistic models of risk assessment and management relating to nano-particle toxicity, the most significant alternatives and challenges that have considered in this study, include: uncertainty in exposure evaluation, risk characterization, toxicity dosage, structure-activity, physico-chemical properties,; continuously monitoring adverse impacts on the natural environment and the human health system; clarification of model objectives; determination of variations and functions; design of a systemic computational framework, data and information accessibility, alternative model structure, sufficient knowledge, and technicalengineering capabilities; combination of the required modules and models to explain more details; providing expert opinions and judgment to make ultimate decisions and regulations; and standardizing the experimental testing system. This study have demonstrated that consideration to multi criteria and wide view point to the required scientific tools such as nano-chemistry and nano-engineering and also other mentioned principles and alternatives above, may assist to reach proper framework of RA and RM which could be applicable to apply in various fields that affected by nano-materials toxicity. The designed models and modules this project could response to all objects associated to NM toxicity contain, evaluation of NM behavior, present practical procedures regards to remove or reduction of NM toxicity, development of regulation and ultimate decision in this area.

Results of this study are summarized as follow:

• A critical review of nano-material toxicity on environment and human health conducted in this study could assist serve the scientific community, regulatory agencies, and the industry in many ways. Several literature sources as

identified in the references section were reviewed and discussed in this report. The information compiled in this report can help in (I) better understanding of nano material toxicity, (II) improved understanding of interrelationships among various parameters, and (III) designing applicable road map to investigate nanomaterial toxicity.

 This study has showed that integrated RA and RM methodology for nanomaterials toxicity could be achieved using the fundamental principles of chemistry, physics, biology, toxicology, and other related disciplines. Two critical outcomes of this section are:

- Documenting required data and information on adverse effects of nano-materials.

- Identified multi-criteria pathways of NM toxicity assessment in under various scenarios.

 Nano-engineering and nano-chemistry are two distinct applicable tools but in combination, they have important role in quality and quantity controls of NM synthesis, structural design, and assist in standardizing methods. Furthermore, focus on concepts and practical procedures of nano-engineering and nanochemistry lead to designing an acceptable and comprehensive RA and RM regards to:

> - Reducing and/or removing harmful impacts of various nanomaterial toxicity on human health and the natural environment.

- Helping in development of rational regulations in nano-material toxicity assessment.

References:

1- Hartnik Thomas Norli Hans Ragnar. Eggen Trine Breeveld Gijsbert D. Bioassay-directed identification of toxic organic compounds in creosote-contaminated groundwater, Chemosphere **ISSN** 0045-6535 . 2007. vol. 66,, pp 435-443

2- Claudia Zani .Donatella Feretti .Annamaria Buschini Paola Poli Carlo Rossi .Licia Guzzella . Filomena Di Caterino c. Silvano Monarca . Toxicity and genotoxicity of surface water before and after various potabilization steps. Mutation research. Genetic toxicology and environmental mutagenesis **ISSN** 1383-5718. 2005, vol. 587, pp. 26-37

3- Kumiko Azetsu-Scott, Phil Yeats b, Gary Wohlgeschaffen c, John Dalziel b, Sherry Niven b, Kenneth Lee . Precipitation of heavy metals in produc ed water:Influence on contaminant transport and toxicity . 2007. Mar Environ Res., vol 63(2), pp146-67

4- Bosch K, Erdinger L, Ingel F, Khussainova S, Utegenova E, Bresgen N, Eckl PM. Evaluation of the toxicological properties of ground- and surface-water samples from the Aral Sea Basin . 2007.Sci Total Environ. vol374(1), pp43-50

5-Muller R, Tang JY, Thier R, Mueller JF. Combining passive sampling and toxicity testing for evaluation of mixtures of polar organic chemicals in sewage treatment plant effluent . 2007, Journal of Environmental Monitoring, vol 9 1, pp 104-109

6- Guerra R, Pasteris A, Ponti M, Fabbrid D, Bruzzi L. Impact of dredging in a shallow coastal lagoon: Microtox Basic Solid-Phase Test, trace metals and Corophium bioassay. 2007, Iberian Congress on Contamination and Environmental Toxicology . vol. 33, pp. 469-473

7- Ishaque AB, Johnson L, Gerald T, Boucaud D, Okoh J, Tchounwou PB. Assessment of individual and combined toxicities of four non-essential metals (As, Cd, Hg and Pb) in the microtox assay. 2006 Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health, vol3(1), pp118-120

8- Utgikar VP, Chaudhary N, Koeniger A, Tabak HH, Haines JR, Govind R. Toxicity of metals and metal mixtures: analysis of concentration and time dependence for zinc and copper. 2004, Water research **ISSN** 0043-1354, vol. 38 pp. 3651-3658

9- Hsieh CY, Tsai MH, Ryan DK, Pancorbo OC. Toxicity of the 13 priority pollutant metals to Vibrio fisheri in the Microtox chronic toxicity test. 2004, Science of the total environment **ISSN** 0048-9697, vol. 320, pp. 37-50

10- Sheehan P, Dewhurst RE, James S, Callaghan A, Connon R, Crane M. Is there a relationship between soil and groundwater toxicity? .2003, Environmental geochemistry and health **ISSN** 0269-4042, vol. 25, pp. 9-16

11- Marsalek J, Rochfort Q, Grapentine L, Brownlee B. Assessment of storm water impacts on an urban stream with a detention pond. 2002, Water science and technology **ISSN** 0273-1223, vol. 45, pp. 255-263

12- Lopes I, Gonçalves F, Soares AM, Ribeiro R.Instituto do Ambiente e Vida, Discriminating the ecotoxicity due to metals and to low pH in acid mine drainage. 1999, Ecotoxicology and Environmental safety. vol 44 Issue 2, pp. 207-214

13- Svenson A, Linlin Z, Kaj L. Primary chemical and physical characterization of acute toxic components in wastewaters. 1992 Ecotoxicol Environ Saf. vol 24(2), pp234-4214-14-Beck-Speier I, Dayal N, Karg E, Maier KL, Schumann G, Schulz H.

Oxidative stress and lipid mediators induced in alveolar macrophages by ultrafine particles. 2005. Free Radic Biol Med. Vol 38(18), pp:1080-92

15- Powers K W, Brown S C, Krishna V B, Wasdo S C, Moudgil B M, Roberts S M Research strategies for safety evaluation of nano-materials. Part VI. Characterization of nano-scale particles for toxicological evaluation . 2006. Toxicol. Sci. vol 90, pp 296-303

16- Block ML, Wu X, Pei Z, Li G, Wang T, Qin L. Nanometre size diesel exhaust particles are selectively toxic to dopaminergic neurons: the role of microglia, phagocytosis, and NADPH oxidase. 2004,Faseb J.vol 18(13), pp 1618-20

17- Borm PJA, Schins RPF, Albrecht C. Inhaled particles and lung cancer, Part B, Paradigms and risk assessment, 2004, Int J Cancer, vol 110, pp 3-14

18- Brown DM, Donaldson K, Borm PJ, Schins RP, Dehnhardt M, Gilmour P, Jimenez LA, Stone V. Calcium ROS-mediated activation of transcription factors and TNF-alpha cytokine gene expression in macrophages exposed to ultrafine particles. 2004 Am J Physiol Lung Cell Mol Physiol. Vol 286(2), pp 344-53

19-Chen M, von Mickecz A, Formation of nucleoplasmic protein aggregates impairs nuclear function in response to SiO2 nanoparticles. 2005, Exp Cell Res, vol 305(1), pp 51-62.

20-De Haar C, Hassing I, Bol M, Bleumink R, Pieters R. Ultrafine but not fine particulate matter causes airway inflammation and allergic airway sensitization to co-administered antigen in mice. 2006 Clin Exp Allergy. Vol 36(11), pp1469-79

21-Donaldson K, Mills N, Macnee W, Robinson S, Newby D. Role of inflammation in cardiopulmonary health effects of PM. 2005, Toxicol Appl Pharmacol, vol 207, pp 483-488.

22- Colvin V L 2003 The potential environmental impact of engineered nanomaterials 2003.Nature Biotechnol. vol 21, pp 1166-1170

23- Buzea, I. Pacheco, K. Robbie, Nanomaterials and nanoparticles. 2007. Sources and toxicity Biointerphases , vol 2, 4 . pp17-172.

24-Maynard A D, Kuempel E D. Airborne nanostructured particles and occupational health 2005 J. Nanopart. Res, vol **7**, pp 587-6142

25- Englert N . Fine particles and human health – a review of epidemiological studies. 2004. Toxicol. Lett. vol. 149. pp 235-242

26- Delfino R J, Sioutas C, Malik S .Potential role of ultrafine particles in association between airborne particle mass and cardiovascular health 2005.Environ Health Perspect.vol113,pp 934-946

27- Tao F, Gonzales-Flecha B, Kobzik L. Reactive oxygen species in pulmonary inflammation by ambient particulates . 2003. Free Radical Biol. & Med. vol 35 . pp 327-340

28- Evelyn A, Mannick S, Sermon P A. Unusual carbon-based nanofibers and chains among dieselemitted particles. 2003. Nano. Lett. vol. pp 3 63-64

29- Soto K F, Carrasco A, Powell T G, Garza K M, Murr L E. Comparative *in vitro* cytotoxicity assessment of some manufactured nanoparticulate materials characterized by transmission electronmicroscopy 2005. J. Nanoparticle Res.vol **7**, pp 145-169

30- Gimbert J Laura, Hamon E .Rebecca, Casey C . Phil, Worsfold J Paul Partitioning and stability of engineered ZnO nanoparticles in soil suspensions using flow field-flow fractionation. Environ. Chem, vol 4, pp 8–10.

31- Penn A, Murphy G, Barker S, Henk W, Penn L 2005 Combustion-Derived Ultrafine Particles Transport Organic Toxicants to Target Respiratory Cells 2005. Environ. Health Persp. vol113, pp 956-963

32-Vermylen J, Nemmar A, Nemery B, Hoylaerts F. Ambient air pollution and acute myocardial infarction 2005. J. Thromb. Haemost. vol 3, pp 1955-1961

33- Serpone N, Salinaro A, Emeline A 2001 Deleterious effects of sunscreen titanium dioxide nanoparticles on DNA: efforts to limit DNA damage by particle surface modification 2001. Proc. SPIE, vol 4258, pp 86-98

34- Gatti A M, Montanari S, Monari E, Gambarelli A, Capitani F, Parisini B 2004 Detection of micro- and nano-sized biocompatible particles in the blood 2004.J. Mater. Sci. Mater. Med. Vol 15, pp 469-472

35- Lam CW, James JT, McCluskey R, Arepalli S, Hunter RL. A review of carbon nanotube toxicity and assessment of potential occupational and environmental health risks. 2006. Crit Rev Toxicol. Vol 36(3), pp 189-217

36- Ferin J, Oberdorster G 1992 Polymer degradation and ultrafine particles: potential inhalation hazards for astronauts 1992. Acta Astronaut. Vol 27, pp 257-259

37- Baker L. Gregory, Gupta Amit, Clark L. Mark, Valenzuela R. Blandina , Staska M . Lauren , Harbo j. Sam, Pierce T. Judy, Dill A. Jeffery. Inhalation Toxicity and Lung Toxicokinetics of C_{60} Fullerene Nanoparticles and Microparticles 2008 Toxicological Sciences vol 101(1), pp 122-131

38- Lippmann M, Frampton M, Schwartz J, Dockery D, Schlesinger R, Koutrakis P, Froines J, Nel A, Finkelstein J, Godleski J, Kaufman J, Koenig J, Larson T, Luchtel D, Liu LJ, Oberdorster G, Peters A, Sarnat J, Sioutas C, Suh H, Sullivan J, Utell M, Wichmann E, Zelikoff J The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Particulate Matter Health Effects Research Centers Program: a midcourse report of status, progress,

and plans. 2003. Environ. Health Persp. vol 111, pp 1074-1092

39- Faria EC, Treves Brown BJ, Snook RD. Water toxicity monitoring using Vibrio fischeri: a method free of interferences from colour and turbidity. 2004 J Environ Monit. Vol 2, pp 97-102.

40- Kazuo Asakura . Inhalation risk assessment of trace elements emitted from coal-fired power plants . 2004. Denryoku Chuo Kenkyujo Komae Kenkyujo Hokoku. vol.T03032, Pages.32P

41- Pope C A, Burnett R T, Thun M J, Calle E E, Krewski D, Ito K, Thurston G D Lung cancer, cardiopulmonary mortality, and long-term exposure to fine particulate air

pollution . 2002 . JAMA , vol286, pp 1132-1141

42- Iwai K, Mizuno S, Miyasaka Y, Mori T. Correlation between suspended particles in the environmental air and causes of disease among inhabitants: cross-sectional studies using the vital statistics and air pollution data in Japan . 2005. Environ. vol 99 106-117

43- Handy, R. D.¹; Shaw, B. J. Toxic effects of nanoparticles and nanomaterials: Implications for public health, risk assessment and the public perception of nanotechnology. 2007. Health, Risk, Sociaty, Volume 9(2).pp 125 - 144 44- Opinian on the appropraitness of the risk assessment methodology in accordance with technical guidance documents for new and existing substances for assessing the risks of nano-materials. The SCENIHR adopted this opinion at the 19th plenary on 21-22 June 2007 after the public consultation [Scientific Committee on Emerging and Newly-Identified Health Risks SCENIHR].June 2007.

45- Garnet M C, Kallinteri P . Nanomedicines and nanotoxicology: some physiological priciples Occ. 2006 . Med. vol56 , pp 307-311

46- Karakoti, AS, Hench ,L,L .Seal, S. Potential toxicity of nano-materials ,Jom . 2006.JOM journal OF the material, Metals and material society. Vol 58 N.7, pp77-82

47-National Library of Medicine (Content source); Emily Monosson (Topic Editor). 2007. "Toxicity testing methods." In: Encyclopedia of Earth. Eds. Cutler J. Cleveland (Washington, D.C.: Environmental Information Coalition, National Council for Science and the Environment). [Published in the Encyclopedia of Earth April 26, 2007; Retrieved August 7, 2008].

48-Carmichael NG., Barton HA., Boobis AR., Cooper RL., Dellarco VL., Doerrer NG*., Crisp PAF., Doe JE., Lamb JC., Paster TP .Agricultural chemical safety assessment: A multisector approach to the modernization of human safety requirements. 2006. Crit Rev Toxicol, vol36(1), pp 1-7

49- Garcia-Garcia E, Andrieux K, Gil S, Kima H R, Le Doana T, Desmaele D, d'Angelo J, Taran F,Georgin D, Couvreur P. A methodology to study intracellular distribution of nanoparticles in brain endothelial cells. 2005. Int. J. Pharm. Vol 298, pp 310–314

50- Balshaw . Research strategies for safety evaluation of nanomaterials. part III. nanoscale technologies for assessing risk and improving public health. 2006 Toxicological Sciences, vol 88, pp 298-306

51-Carmichael NG., Barton HA., Boobis AR., Cooper RL., Dellarco VL., Doerrer NG*., Crisp PAF., Doe JE., Lamb JC., Paster TP (ILSI Health and Environmental Sciences Institute, One Thomas Circle, NW, Ninth Floor, Washington, DC 2005, USA): Agricultural chemical safety assessment: A multisector approach to the modernization of human safety requirements. 2006. Crit Rev Toxicol, vol36(1), pp 1-7

52-National Library of Medicine (Content source); Sidney Draggan (Topic Editor). 2007. "Risk assessment of chemical substances." In: Encyclopedia of Earth. Eds. Cutler J. Cleveland (Washington, D.C.: Environmental Information Coalition, National Council for Science and the Environment). [First published in the Encyclopedia of Earth October 4, 2006; Last revised May 21, 2007; Retrieved August 7, 2008

53- Kukowska-Latallo J F, Candido K A, Cao Z, Nigavekar S S, Majoros I J, Thomas T P, Balogh L B, Khan M K, Baker J R Jr .Nanoparticle targeting of anticancer drug improves therapeutic response in animal model of human epithelial cancer . 2005. Cancer Res. Vol 65, pp 5317-5324

54- Campbell A, Oldham M, Becaria A, Bondy S C, Meacher D, Sioutas C, Misra C, Mendez L B,Kleinman M. Particulate matter in polluted air may increase biomarkers of inflammation in mouse brain. 2005. Neurotoxicol.vol 26, pp 133-140

55- Oberdörster E. Manufactured nanomaterials (Fullerenes, C60) induce oxidative stress in the brain of juvenile largemouth bass . 2004. *Environ*. Health Persp. Vol 112, pp1058-1062

56- Jani P, Halbert G W, Langridge J, Florence A T. Nanoparticle uptake by the rat gastrointestinal mucosa: quantitation and particle size dependency. 1990 J. Pharm. Pharmacol. Vol 42, pp 821-826

57- Monteiro-Riviere N A, Nemanich R J, Inman A O, Wang Y Y, Riviere J E. Multi-walled carbon nanotube interactions with human epidermal keratinocytes. 2005, Toxicol. Lett.vo 1155, pp **377**-384

58- Tsuji J S, Maynard A D, Howard P C, James J T, Lam C W, Warheit D B, and Santamaria A B. Research strategies for safety evaluation of nanomaterials, Part IV: Risk assessment of nanoparticles .2006.Toxicol. Sci. vol 89,pp 42-50

59- Kubota Y, Shuin T, Kawasaki C, Hosaka M, Kitamura H, Cai R, Sakai H, Hashimoto K, Fujishima A 1994 Photokilling of T-24 human bladder cancer cells with titanium dioxide 1994.*Br*. J. Cancer, vol 70,pp 1107-11011

60- US EPA. Concept Paper for the Nanoscale Materials Stewardship Program under TSCA. EPA. 2007 . Retrieved August 21, 2007

61-Varanasi, P., Fullana, A., & Sidhu, S. (2007). Remediation of PCB containinated soils using iron nanoparticles. 2007. Chemosphere, vol 66, pp1031-1038.

62- Shi Z, Shao L, Jones T P, Lu S 2005 Microscopy and mineralogy of airborne particles collected during severe dust storm episodes in Beijing, China .2005. Geophys. Res, *vol* 110, pp 1303

62- U.S. E.P.A. Health assessment for Diesel exhaust. 2002.U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 2002

63- Roduner E 2006 Size matters: why nanomaterials are different. 2006. Chem Soc .Rev vol 35, pp 583 – 592

64-Risom L, Moller P, Loft S. Oxidative stress-induced DNA damage by particulate air pollution Mutat. 2005. Mutat Res, vol 592(1-2), pp 119-37

65-Donaldson K, Stone V. Current hypotheses on the mechanisms of toxicity of ultrafine particles. 2003. Ann.Ist. Super Sanita vol 39(3), pp 405-10

66-Gurr J R, Wang A S S, Chen C H, Jan K Y . Ultrafine titanium dioxide particles in the absence of photoactivation can induce oxidative damage to human bronchial epithelial cells. 2005 Toxicol ; vol 213(1-2), pp 66-73

67-Xia T, Kovochich M, Brant J, Hotze M, Sempf J, Oberley T, Sioutas C, Yeh J I, Wiesner M R, Nel A E . Comparison of the abilities of ambient and manufactured nanoparticles to induce cellular toxicity according to an oxidative stress paradigm. 2006 Nano Lett. vol 6(8), pp1794-1807 . ISBN: 1530-6984 . Accession Number: ISI:000239623900039

68-Sayes C M, Fortner J D, Guo W, Lyon D, Boyd A M, Ausman K D, Tao Y J, Sitharaman B, Wilson L J, Highes J B, West J L, Colvin V L 2004 The differential cytotoxicity of water-soluble fullerenes 2004.Nano Lett, vol 4 (10), pp 1881–1887

69-Johnston C J, Finkelstein J N, Mercer P, Corson N, Gelein R, Oberdorster G . Pulmonary effects induced by ultrafine PTFE particles.2000. Toxicol Appl Pharmacol. vol168(3), pp 208-15

70- Almeida G A, Schutz L 1983 Number, mass and volume distributions of mineral aerosol and soils of the Sahara. 1983. Journal of Applied Meteorology, vol. 22, Issue 2, pp.233-243

71-Taylor D A. Dust in the wind Environ. 2002. Environ Health Perspect, vol 110(2), pp 80-7

72- Nemery B 1990 Metal toxicity and the respiratory tract. 1990. Eur. Respir. J. vol 3(2), pp 202-19

73- Porter A E, Muller K, Skepper J, Midgley P, Welland M. Uptake of C60 by human monocytes macrophages, its localization and implications for toxicity: studied by high resolution electron microscopy and electron tomography. 2006. Acta Biomater. Vol 2. pp 409-419

74- Salvador-Morales C, Flahaut E, Sim E, Sloan J, Green ML, Sim RB, Complement activation and protein adsorption by carbon nanotubes. Mol Immunol 2006, vol 43, pp 193-201. APPENDIX A. Relationship of ORD Research Strategy to EPA White Paper Research Needs (Current Research (CR), Short-term Research (SR), and Long-term Research (LT))

The table below is only intended to link the activities described in this strategy with the overall research need questions in the EPA White Paper. It is not designed to provide details on implementation of the NRS. (Draft Nanomaterial Research Strategy (NRS) January 24, 2008 EPA/600/S-08/002)

Research Theme	Research Need Questions (from EPA White Paper; EPA, 2007)	Relationship to ORD Strategy (CR, SR, LR)*
Research Needs for Risk		
Assessment		
Chemical Identification and	What are the unique chemical and	SR
Characterization	physical characteristics of nanomaterials?	
	How do these characteristics vary among	
	different classes of materials (e.g., carbon	
	based, metal based) and among the	
	individual members of a class	
	(e.g., fullerenes, nanotubes)?	
	How do these properties affect the	SR
	material's reactivity, toxicity and other	
	attributes?	
	To what extent will it be necessary to	SR
	tailor research protocols to the specific type	
	and use pattern of each nanomaterial? Can	
	properties and effects be extrapolated within	
	class of nanomaterials?	
	Are there adequate measurement	SR
	methods/technology available to fully	
	characterize nanomaterials, to distinguish	
	among different types of nanomaterials, and	
	distinguish intentionally produced	
	nanomaterials from ultrafine particles or	
	naturally occurring nanosized particles?	
	Are current test methods for characterizing	SR
	nanomaterials adequate for the evaluation	
	hazard and exposure data?	
	Do nanomaterial characteristics vary from	SR
	their pure form in the laboratory to their	
	form as components of products and	
	eventually to the form in which they occur	
	in the environment?	

	What intentionally produced nanomaterials a now on the market and what new types of materials can be expected to be developed?	SR
	How will manufacturing processes, formulations, and incorporations in end products alter the characteristics of nanomaterials?	SR
Environmental Fate and Treatment Research Needs		
Transport Research Questions	What are the physical and chemical factors that influence the transport and deposition of intentionally produced nanomaterials in the environment? How do nanomaterials move through these media? Can existing information on soil colloidal fate and transport and atmospheric ultrafine particulate fate and transport inform our thinking?	SR
	How are nanomaterials transported in the atmosphere? What nanomaterials properties and atmospheric conditions control the atmospheric fate of nanomaterials?	SR
	To what extent are nanomaterials mobile in soils and in groundwater? What is the potential for these materials, if released to soil or landfills, to migrate to groundwater and within aquifers, with potential exposure general populations via groundwater ingestion?	CR
	What is the potential for these materials to be transported bound to particulate matter, sediments, or sludge in surface waters?	SR
	How do the aggregation, sorption and agglomeration of nanoparticles affect their transport?	SR
	How do nanomaterials bioaccumulate? Do their unique characteristics affect their bioavailability? Do nanomaterials bioaccumulate to a greater or lesser extent than macro-scale or bulk materials?	SR
Transformation Research Questions	How do nanoparticles react differently in the environment than their bulk counterparts	SR

	What are the physical and chemical factors that impact the persistence of intentionally produced nanomaterials in the environment?	SR
	What data are available on the physical and	
	chemical factors that affect the persistence o	
	unintentionally produced nanomaterials	
	(e.g., carbon-based combustion products)	
	that may provide information regarding	
	intentionally produced nanomaterials?	
	Do particular nanomaterials persist in the	SR
	environment, or undergo degradation via	
	biotic of abiotic processes? If they degrade,	
	what are the byproducts and their	
	characteristics? Is the nanomaterial likely to	
	be in the environment, and thus be available	
	for bioaccumulation/biomagnification?	CD.
	How are the physical, chemical and biologic	SR
	properties of nanomaterials	
	altered in complex environmental media	
	such as air, water, and soll? How do redox	
	transformation of non-materials? To what	
	extent are nenomaterials photoreactive	
	in the atmosphere in water, or on	
	in the atmosphere, in water, of on	
	How do the aggregation sorption and	SP
	agglomeration of panoparticles affect their	SIC
	transport?	
	In what amounts and in what forms may	LR
	nanoparticles be released from materials	
	that contain them, as a result of environment	
	forces (rain, sunlight, etc.) or through use,	
	re-use, and recycle or disposal.	
Chemical Interaction	How do nanosized adsorbents and	SR
Research Questions	chemicals sorbed to them in influence their	
	respective environmental interactions? Can	
	these materials alter the mobility of other	
	substances in the environment? Can these	
	materials alter the reactivity of other	
	substances in the environmental?	
Treatment Research	What is the potential for these materials to	SR
Questions	bind to soil, subsurface materials, sediment	
	or wastewater sludge, or binding agents in	
	waste treatment facilities?	

	Are these materials effectively removed	SR
	from wastewater using conventional	
	wastewater treatment methods and, if so, by	
	what mechanism?	
	Do these materials have an impact on the	SR
	treatability of other substances in waste	
	streams (e.g., wastewater, hazardous and	
	nonhazardous solid wastes), or on treatment	
	facilities performance?	
	How effective are existing treatment	SR
	methods (e.g., carbon adsorption, filtration,	
	coagulation and settling, or incineration/air	
	pollution control system	
	sequestration/stabilization) for treating	
	nanomaterials?	
Assessment Approaches and	Can existing information on soil colloidal	CR
Tools Questions	fate and transport, as well as atmospheric	
	ultrafine particulate fate and transport,	
	inform our thinking? Do the current	
	databases of ultrafines/fibers shed light	
	on any of these questions?	
	Do the different nanomaterials act similarly	CR
	enough to be able to create classes of like	
	compounds? Can these classes be used to	
	predict structure-activity relationships for	
	future materials?	
	Should current fate and transport models	SR
	be modified to incorporate the unique	
	characteristics of nanomaterials?	
Environmental Detection an		
Analysis Research Needs		
Existing Methods and	Are existing methods and technologies	SR
Technologies Research	capable of detecting, characterizing, and	~~~
Ouestions	quantifying intentionally produced	
	nanomaterials by measuring particle number	
	size, shape, surface properties (e.g.,	
	reactivity, charge, and area), etc? Can they	
	distinguish between intentionally produced	
	nanomaterials of interest and other ultrafine	
	particles? Can they distinguish between	
	individual particles of interest and particles	
	that may have agglomerated or attached to	
	larger particles?	

	Are standard procedures available for both sample preparation and analysis?	SR
	Are quality assurance and control reference materials and procedures available?	SR
	How would nanomaterials in waste media be measured and evaluated?	SR
New Methods and Technologies Research Need	What low-cost, portable, and easy-to-use technologies can detect, characterize, and quantify nanomaterials of interest in environmental media and for personal exposure	LR
Human Exposures, Their Measurement and Control		
Risk and Exposure Assessment Research Questions	Is the current exposure assessment process adequate for assessing exposures to nanomaterials? Is mass dose an effective metric for measuring exposure? What alternative metric (e.g., particle count, surface area) should be used to measure exposure? Are sensitive populations' (e.g., endangered species, children, asthmatics, etc.) exposure patterns included?	SR
	How do physical and chemical properties of nanomaterials affect releases and exposures?	SR
	How do variations in manufacturing and subsequent processing, and the use of particle surface modifications affect exposure characteristics?	SR
Release and Exposure Quantification Research Questions	What information is available about unique release and exposure patterns of nanomaterials? What additional information needed?	LR
	What tools/resources currently exist for assessing releases and exposures within EPA (chemical release information/ monitoring systems (e.g., TRI), measurement tools, models, etc)? Are these tools/resources adequate to measure, estimate, and assess releases and exposures to nanomaterials? Is degradation of nanomaterials accounted for?	SR

	What research is needed to develop sensors	SR
	that can detect nanomaterials, including	
	personal exposure monitoring?	
Release and Exposure	What tools/resources exist for limiting	SR
Reduction and Mitigation	release and/or exposure during manufacture,	
Research Questions	use of following release via waste streams?	
	Are these tools/resources adequate for	
	nanomaterials?	
	Are current respirators, filters, gloves, and	LR
	other PPE capable of reducing or	
	eliminating exposure from nanomaterials?	
	Are current engineering controls and pollution	SR
	prevention devices capable of minimizing	
	releases and exposures to nanomaterials?	
	Are technologies and procedures for	LR
	controlling spills during manufacture and	
	use adequate for nanomaterials? Can	
	current conventional technologies (i.e., for	
	non-nanomaterials) be adapted to control	
	nanomaterial spills?	
	In the case of an unintentional spill, what	LR
	are the appropriate emergency actions?	
	How are wastes from the response actions	
	disposed of properly?	
	Do existing methods using vacuum	LR
	cleaners with HEPA filters work to clean up	
	spill of solid nanomaterials? If not, would a	
	wet vacuum system work?	
	What PPEs would be suitable for use by	LR
	operators during spill mitigation?	
Human Health Effects	What are the health effects (local and	CR
Assessment Research Needs	systemic; acute and chronic) from either	
	direct exposure to nanomaterials, or to their	
	byproducts, associated with those	
	nanotechnology applications that are most	
	likely to have potential for exposure?	
	Are there specific toxicological endpoints	SR
	that are of higher concern for nanomaterials,	
	such as neurological, cardiovascular,	
	respiratory, or immunological effects, etc.?	

Are current testing methods (organisms, exposure regimes, media, analytical methods, testing schemes) applicable to testing nanomaterials in standardized agency toxicity tests (http://www.epa.gov/opptsfrs/OPPTS_ Harmonized/)?	SR
Are current test methods, for example OECD and EPA harmonized test guidelines, capable of determining the toxicity of the wide variety of intentionally produced nanomaterials and byproducts associated with their production and applications?	SR
Are current analytical methods capable of analyzing and quantifying intentionally produced nanomaterials to generate dose- response relationships?	SR
What physical and chemical properties regulate nanomaterial absorption, distribution, metabolism, and excretion (ADME)?	SR
What physical and chemical properties and dose metrics best correlate with the toxicity (local and systemic; acute and chronic) of intentionally produced nanomaterials following various routes of exposure?	CR
How do variations in manufacturing and subsequent processing, and the use of particle surface modifications affect nanomaterial hazard?	CR
Are there subpopulations that may be at increased risk of adverse health effects associated with exposure to intentionally produced nanomaterials?	SR
What are the best approaches to build effecti predictive models of toxicity (SAR, PBPK, "omics", etc.)?	SR
Are there approaches to grouping particles in classes relative to their toxicity potencies, in a manner that links in vitro, in vivo, and in silico data?	LR

Ecological Effects Research	Are current testing schemes and methods	SR
Needs	(organisms, endpoints, exposure regimes,	
	media, analytical methods) applicable to	
	testing nanomaterials in standardized	
	toxicity tests? Both pilot testing protocols	
	and definitive protocols should be evaluated	
	with respect to their applicability to	
	nanomaterials.	
	What is the distribution of nanomaterials in	SR
	ecosystems? Research on model	
	ecosystems studies (micro, mesocosms) is	
	needed to assist in determining the	
	distribution of nanomaterials in ecosystems	
	and potentially affected compartments and	
	species.	
	What are the effects (local and systemic; acu	SR
	and chronic) from either direct	
	exposure to nanomaterials, or to their	
	byproducts, associated with those	
	nanotechnology applications that are most	
	likely to have potential for exposure?	
	What are the absorption, distribution,	SR
	metabolism, elimination (ADME)	
	parameters for various nanomaterials for	
	ecological receptors? This topic addresses	
	the uptake, transport, bioaccumulation	
	relevant to a range of species (fish,	
	invertebrates, birds, amphibians, reptiles,	
	plants, microbes).	
	How do variations in manufacturing and	SR
	subsequent processing, and the use of particl	
	surface modifications affect nanomaterial	
	toxicity to ecological species?	
	What research is needed to examine the	LR
	interaction of nanomaterials with microbes	
	in sewage treatment plants, in sewage	
	effluent, and in natural communities of	
	microbes in natural soil and natural water?	
	What research is needed to develop	SR
	structure activity relationships (SARs) for	
	nanomaterials for aquatic organisms?	
	What are the modes of action $(MOAc)$ for	SD
	various nanomaterials for acalogical species	JI
	Are the MOAs different or similar across	
	ecological species?	
	ecological species?	

Risk Assessment Research - Case Study	Which of the research needs identified in the EPA Nanotechnology White Paper and in the overarching and component questions listed here are of the highest priority from the standpoint of generating information needed to support risk assessments of nanomaterials selected as case studies?	SR
	For selected case studies, using expert judgment methods, what do we know and what do we need to know (in priority ranking) regarding the potential for exposure (cumulative and aggregate) of humans and biota to primary and secondary materials via multi-media pathways?	SR
	Which nanomaterials and applications should ORD focus its efforts on first as case studies? Which expert judgment method(s) is (are) applicable to evaluating selected case studies for identifying "what we know and what we need to know" and for prioritizing research needs?	CR SR
	For selected case studies, using expert judgment methods, what do we know and what do we need to know (in priority ranking) regarding specific details of product life cycle stages, including feedstocks, manufacturing, distribution, storage, use, and disposal/reuse?	SR
	For selected case studies, using expert judgment methods, what do we know and what do we need to know (in priority ranking) regarding likely primary nanomaterials and secondary substances (e.g., waste by-products) that may be released/emitted at each stage of the product life cycle?	SR
	For selected case studies, using expert judgment methods, what do we know and what do we need to know (in priority ranking) regarding likely environmental	SR

	media (air, water, soil, food web) to which	
	releases/emissions of primary and	
	secondary materials may occur, and about	
	potential transport and fate processes that	
	may be applicable?	
Green Manufacturing	How can nanotechnology be used to	SR
Research Needs	reduce waste products during	
	manufacturing?	
	How can nanomaterials be made using benig	CR
	starting materials?	
	How can nanotechnology be used to	LR
	reduce the resources needed for	
	manufacturing (both materials and energy)?	
	What is the life cycle of various types of	SR
	nanomaterials and nanoproducts under a	
	variety of manufacturing and environmental conditions?	
Green Energy Research Nee	What research is needed for incentives to	LR
s,	encourage nanotechnology to enable green	
	energy?	
	How can nanotechnology assist "green"	LR
	energy production, distribution, and use?	
Environmental	Which nanomaterials are most effective for	CR
Remediation/Treatment	remediation and treatment?	CI
Research Needs	remodiation and doutient.	
	What are the fate and effects of nanomateria	CR
	used in remediation applications? When	
	nanomaterials are	
	placed in groundwater treatment,	
	how do they behave over time?	
	Do they move in groundwater? What is	CR
	their potential for migrating to drinking	
	water wells?	
	How can we improve methods for	SR
	detecting and monitoring nanomaterials	
	used in remediation and treatment?	
	To what extent are these materials and	SR
	their byproducts persistent,	
	bioaccumulative, and toxic and what	
	organisms are affected?	TD
	If toxic byproducts are produced, how can	LR
	these be reduced?	
	What is needed to enhance the efficiency and	SR
	cost-effectiveness of remediation and	
	treatment technology?	

Sensors	How can nanomaterials be employed in	LR
	the development of sensors to detect	
	biological and chemical contaminants?	
	How can systems be developed to monitor	LR
	agents in real time and the resulting data	
	accessed remotely?	
	How these small-scale monitoring systems b	LR
	developed to detect personal exposures	
	and in vivo distributions of toxicants.	

Appendix B. Description of EPA Office of Research and Development (Draft Nanomaterial Research Strategy (NRS)January 24, 2008 EPA/600/S-08/002)

The Office of Research and Development (ORD) is the principal research arm of the

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) (http://www.epa.gov/ord/). Its role is to provide the critical science for the Agency's environmental decision-making. Unlike much of EPA, ORD has no direct regulatory function; its responsibility is to inform the policymaking process.

Through the development of technical information and scientific tools, ORD's research strengthens EPA's science base by providing its program offices and regional offices with sound scientific advice and information for use in developing and implementing scientifically defensible environmental policies, regulations, and practices.

As may be seen in Figure B-1, ORD is led by the Assistant Administrator (AA) for Research and Development, who reports directly to the EPA Administrator. This position involves providing leadership in establishing research priorities, ensuring the means for technical evaluation and peer-review of ORD's products, and contributing scientific input into the EPA's regulatory decisions.

The AA ORD is supported by a Deputy Assistant Administrator (DAA) for Management and a DAA for Science. The Directors of ORD's Laboratories and Centers provide scientific leadership relative to their respective organizations and report to the AA ORD. Recently, ORD established National Program Directors (NPDs). The NPDs provide a strategic vision of the stakeholder needs and overall coordination of research programs delineated in ORD

Multi-Year Plans (MYPs). ORD is composed of seven national Laboratories and Centers and two Offices. The Laboratories and Centers, spread across the country, conduct research across the risk assessment/risk management paradigm related to both the environment and human health. ORD also has a National Homeland Security Research Center and a National Center for Computational Toxicology.

ORD's two offices are the Office of Science Policy (OSP) and the Office of Resources Management and Administration (ORMA). OSP plays a vital role by providing expert advice and evaluation on the use of scientific knowledge and science policy to support sound science in the Agency. OSP accomplishes this mission by leading efforts in science integration, coordination and communication across ORD, and between ORD and the Agency's programs, regions, and external parties.

ORMA manages a broad spectrum of issues and provides counsel/advice on all matters relating to the responsible management of ORD's resources.



Figure B-1 Organiaztion chart for the Office of Research and Develoment

Farah Bigdeli was born in July 1969; she received Bs degree in chemistry from Azad University on 1994. She also received master's degree (Ms) in Marin Chemistry in 1997 from same university (Iran). During that period of time, she specifically focused on the chemical and biological features of Caspian Sea. In this study, she characterized chemicals components of Caspian Sea sediments, these components including: Trace Elements (Fe, Pb, Mn, Co, Cu, Zn), Total Organic Carbon (TOC), Total Carbon (TC), Biogenic Elements (Biognic silica dissolution in Sea water) and Chemical Pollution of Mercury in Marin Microorganisms and fishes body.

Since 1996 she has started to research in different chemical, environmental chemistry and environmental engineering laboratories in various fields and she could obtain some experiences in these areas.

She has participated in some research projects in Erath and environmental Science Department of University of New Orleans in 2003 which include: Salt water Instruction in Lacombe and Baton Rouge areas, Further delineate and chemically characterize the areas of salt-water instruction,*Determination of the source of salt contaminations in water:

* Use Hydrolab probe to measure, Temperature, Specific Conductivity, pH, Dissolved Oxygen, and Alkalinity.

* Use Liquid Ion Chromatograph to measure major Cations, Anions and Nutrients.

* Use ICP to measure Li and Sr.

*Use UV-VIS Spectrograph to measure SIO2 aq.

In addition she had participated in some research projects in Civil and Environmental Engineering Lab in Environmental Engineering Department (UNO) from 2005. Her second master's degree is: Master of Science in Environmental Engineering, from University of New Orleans, spring 2009. Her specific research has associated to: Risk Assessment and Risk Management of Nano-Material Toxicity (Manufacturing and

Natural Environment Approaches).

Her interests and objectives in this career of her advanced education consist:

- Study on risk assessment of toxic chemical in natural environment
- Identification and offering appropriate procedures in risk management
- Toxicology and toxicity evaluation of trace elements & heavy metal

• Development of required regulations in Environmental restoration and protection respect to solid waste management methods, waste minimization, pollution prevention, process optimization, and clean technologies evaluation.

• Computer applications to solve and manage environmental/industrial cleanliness problems;

- Air quality management monitoring (ambient, source, and occupational)
- Environmental impact assessment and environmental management systems (EMS)
- Industrial hygiene management
- Development wastewater treatment

• Description an accurate technology in water and wastewater treatment respect to monitoring and

• Development of Kinetics of water and wastewater treatment process